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Chartered Accountants

SRBC & CO LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
Regd. Office: 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata – 700 016

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Aditya Birla Renewables Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Aditya Birla Renewables Energy
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the period from 13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, and
notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2021, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial
statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Board of Directors’ Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and
our Auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the period ended 31 March 2021 has been
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership Number: 36738
UDIN: 21036738AAAACQ8722
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

VIJAY 
MANIAR

Digitally signed 
by VIJAY MANIAR 
Date: 2021.04.22 
23:20:14 +05'30'
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date

(i) (a)   The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a phased
manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. However, as per the program, there was no
plan to undertake physical verification of fixed assets by the management during the period
under audit and hence we are unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(ii) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act"). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act for the products/services of the
Company.

(vii) (a)The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to provident fund, employees' state
insurance, sales- tax, service tax, duty of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax, cess,  and other statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable. The provisions relating to provident fund, employees' state insurance,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
duty of custom and goods and service tax, cess, which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute. The provisions relating to provident fund, employees' state insurance, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.
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(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution
and banks. The Company has not issued any debentures.

 (ix)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instrument. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, monies
raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which they were
raised.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii)  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the
Company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of
the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the period under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not
commented upon.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of the Act.
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(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-lA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership Number: 36738
UDIN: 21036738AAAACQ8722
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

VIJAY 
MANIAR

Digitally signed 
by VIJAY MANIAR 
Date: 2021.04.22 
23:21:26 +05'30'
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Annexure 2 referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading "Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Aditya Birla
Renewables Energy Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership Number: 36738
UDIN: 21036738AAAACQ8722
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

VIJAY 
MANIAR

Digitally signed 
by VIJAY MANIAR 
Date: 2021.04.22 
23:22:59 +05'30'
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CIN: U40100MH2020PLC339362

 (in Rs.) 

Particulars Notes
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Assets

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3                                     61,81,93,762 
Deferred tax asset (net) 4                                            7,50,936 
Non current tax assets (net) 5                                               54,950 

                                    61,89,99,648 

Current assets

Financial assets
Trade receivables 6                                          19,52,465 
Cash and cash equivalents 7                                          66,66,357 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8                                       2,90,00,000 
Other financial assets 9                                          38,41,321 

Other current assets 10                                          34,93,359 
                                      4,49,53,502 

Total assets                                     66,39,53,150 

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital 11                                     13,15,00,000 
Other equity 12                                         (49,77,258)

                                    12,65,22,742 

Liabilities

Non current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13                                     28,53,04,554 
Other financial liabilities 14                                          84,73,242 

                                    29,37,77,796 

Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 15                                     24,13,12,476 

Other current liabilities 16                                          23,40,136 
                                    24,36,52,612 

Total liabilities                                     53,74,30,408 

Total equity and liabilities                                     66,39,53,150 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Renewables Energy Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar Pawan Kumar Jain Amitabh Verma

Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 36738 DIN:07833315 DIN:08990619 
Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

Ram Kishore Dwivedi Maitri Shah

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: ACS 44236

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021
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Aditya Birla Renewables Energy Limited

CIN: U40100MH2020PLC339362

Statement of profit and loss for the period ended 31 March 2021

(in Rs.)

 For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Income

Revenue from operations 17                                       91,82,360 
Other income 18                                       16,89,176 
Total income                                    1,08,71,536 

Expenses

Depreciation expenses 19                                       20,96,231 
Finance costs 20                                       27,34,081 
Other expenses 21                                       29,29,788 
Total expenses                                       77,60,100 

Profit for the period before tax                                       31,11,436 

Tax expenses
Current tax -                                                
Deferred tax 4                                         7,65,944 

Total tax expense                                         7,65,944 

Net profit for the period                                       23,45,492 

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or 

loss in subsequent periods

Net movement on cashflow hedge (88,39,630)                                    
Income tax effect 4                                       15,16,880 
Other comprehensive income for the period (73,22,750)                                    

Total comprehensive income for the period (49,77,258)                                    

Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each

Basic and diluted 22                                                0.30 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Renewables Energy Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar Pawan Kumar Jain Amitabh Verma

Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 36738 DIN:07833315 DIN:08990619 
Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

Ram Kishore Dwivedi Maitri Shah

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: ACS 44236

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

Particulars Notes 
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Cash flow statement for the period ended 31 March 2021

(in Rs.)

Particulars

For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 

2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit for the period before tax as per the statement of profit and loss                                     31,11,436 

Adjustments for:

Interest income (2,50,746)                                    
Finance costs                                     27,10,864 
Depreciation expenses                                     20,96,231 
Stamp duty on issue of shares                                     13,49,050 
Operating profit before working capital changes                                     90,16,835 

Working capital adjustments

Increase in trade receivables                                    (19,52,465)
Increase in other current assets and other financial assets                                    (48,90,364)
Increase in other financial liabilities                                     13,45,164 
Increase in other current liabilities                                     23,40,136 
Cash generated from operating activities                                     58,59,306 

Income taxes paid (54,950)                                       
Cash generated from operating activities                                     58,04,356 

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of tangible assets including capital work in progress (38,22,85,170)                             
Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than three months (placed)/matured (2,90,00,000)                               
Interest received                                        8,04,855 
Cash used in investing activities                               (41,04,80,315)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares                                13,15,00,000 
Stamp duty on issue of shares (13,49,050)                                  
Proceeds from borrowings                                28,73,93,700 
Loan transaction expenses (52,93,515)                                  
Proceeds from inter corporate loan                                  2,00,00,000 
Repayment of inter corporate loan (2,00,00,000)                               
Interest paid                                      (9,08,819)
Cash generated from financing activities                                41,13,42,316 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                                     66,66,357 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period -                                               
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (note 7)                                     66,66,357 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following: (in Rs.)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Balance with banks
On current accounts                                     41,66,357 
Fixed deposits with original maturity of less than three months                                     25,00,000 

Total                                     66,66,357 

Reconcilition of liabilties from financing activities for the period ended 31 March 2021 (in Rs.)

Particulars
 As at 

13 April 2020 
 Cashflows 

 Non cash 

changes/Transaction 

costs 

 As at 

31 March 2021 

Borrowings-non-current -                               28,73,93,700                          (20,89,146)                                28,53,04,554 
Other financial liabilities (current maturity of long term debt) -                          -                    -                                     -                                               
Borrowings-current -                          -                    -                                     -                                               
Total -                               28,73,93,700                          (20,89,146)                                28,53,04,554 

As per our report attached of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Renewables Energy Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar Pawan Kumar Jain Amitabh Verma

Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 36738 DIN:07833315 DIN:08990619 
Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

Ram Kishore Dwivedi Maitri Shah

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: ACS 44236

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

Note: Cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method set out in Ind AS 7, prescribed under Companies Act (Indian Accounting Standard Rules, 2015 of
the Companies Act, 2013).
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Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31 March 2021

A) Equity share capital

Particulars Number of shares  Amount (in Rs.) 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Issue of equity share capital (note 11 ) 1,31,50,000                         13,15,00,000 
As at 31 March 2021 1,31,50,000                         13,15,00,000 

B) Other equity

(in Rs.)

Particulars
Surplus in the statement 

of profit & loss 
 Total 

As at 13 April 2020

Profit for the period (note 12)                             23,45,492                              23,45,492 
Other comprehensive income (note 12)                           (73,22,750)                            (73,22,750)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2021                           (49,77,258)                            (49,77,258)

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Renewables Energy Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar Pawan Kumar Jain Amitabh Verma

Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 36738 DIN:07833315 DIN:08990619 
Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

Ram Kishore Dwivedi Maitri Shah

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: ACS 44236

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2021 

 

1. Corporate information 

   

Aditya Birla Renewables Energy Limited ('the Company') is a public limited Company incorporated on 13 April 
2020 and domiciled in India having its registered office located at A-2, Aditya Birla Centre, S K Ahire Marg, Worli, 
Mumbai-400 030, Maharashtra, India. Its Holding Company is Aditya Birla Renewables Limited with 74% 
shareholding and UltraTech Cement Limited is an associate of the Company with 26% shareholding. 
 
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of generation and supply of electricity through solar power to 
plants of UltraTech Cement Limited for captive consumption purpose. 
 
The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 22 April 2021. 
 

2.    Significant accounting policies 

 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies 
Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable. 

 
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and 
liabilities measured at carrying value which approximates the amortized cost and derivative instruments are 
measured at fair values at each balance sheet date, as explained in the accounting policies below.  
 
In addition, the carrying values of recognised assets and liabilities designated as hedged items in fair value hedges 
that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are adjusted to record changes in the fair values attributable to the 
risks that are being hedged in effective hedge relationships. 

 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('Rs'), which is also the Company’s functional currency. 

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

             

a. Current versus non-current classification 

 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification as 
per the requirements of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 
-  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
-  Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
-  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period 
 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 
 A liability is current when: 
-  It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
-  It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
-  It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
-  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 
 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2021 

 

The operating cycle is the time between the development/acquisition of assets for power generation and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 
 

b. Foreign currencies 

 

Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. 
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date. 
 
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss.  
 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the 
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain 
or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

 
c. Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
-   In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
-   In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The Company uses valuation techniques, wherever required, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole: 
 
- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
- Level 2 — Valuation techniques, wherever required, for which the lowest level input that is significant to 

the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable other than quoted prices include in level 1 
- Level 3 — Valuation techniques, wherever required, for which the lowest level input that is significant to 

the fair value measurement is unobservable 
 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period. 
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 
 
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation 
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not 
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include consideration of inputs 
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the 
reported fair values of financial instruments. 
 

d. Revenue recognition 

 
(i) Revenue from sale of solar power  

 
Revenue from sale of power is recognised net of estimated rebates and other similar allowances when the units 
of electricity is delivered at the contracted rate. 
 
 Revenue from such contracts is recognised over time for each unit of electricity delivered. The Company has 
identified supply of power over the term of PPA as a single performance obligation and is recognizing revenue 
over time using a single measure of progress. Accordingly, the Company recognizes revenue for the amount it 
has the right to invoice (i.e., on an as-invoiced basis) since the amount corresponds to the value it transfers to 
the customer. 
 
The customer is billed on a monthly basis and is given average credit period of 7 to 15 days for payment. 
  
There is no significant judgement involved while evaluating the timing as to when customers obtain control of 
promised goods. 
 
Contract balances 

(a) Contract assets  

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the 
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or 
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. 
 
(b) Trade receivables 

A receivable represents the Company’s unconditional right to an amount of consideration (i.e., only the passage 
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).  

 
(c) Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays 
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised 
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as 
revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 
 
(d) Unbilled Revenue 

Unbilled revenue represents services rendered by the Company but not invoiced as at the balance sheet date. 
 
(ii) Interest income 

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest 
rate applicable. Interest income on fixed deposit receipts is included in other income in the statement of profit 
and loss. 
 

e. Taxes 

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.  
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Current income tax 

 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. 
 
Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting period in 
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable 
tax laws. 
 
Current income tax, relating to items recognised outside profit or loss, is recognised outside profit or loss in 
other comprehensive income (OCI). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction 
in other comprehensive income. The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, 
where appropriate. 

 

Deferred tax 

 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 
 
Tax relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive 
income and not in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to 
be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities, and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.  

f. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or construction cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is carried at historical cost and is not subject to depreciation. Cost 
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its location and working condition 
for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning. 
  
The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that the economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company in future periods and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance 
expenses are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the period in which they are incurred. 
 
An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or replacement or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or replacement or retirement 
of an item of PPE, is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets 
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- Plant and equipment: 30 years 
- Building: 30 years  
- Office equipment: 3-5 years 

The Company, based on technical assessment made by management estimate, depreciates plant and equipment 
and building over estimated useful lives, which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair 
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. 
 
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 
Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/development as at the 
reporting date and is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

g. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the 
asset. All other expenses pertaining to borrowing obligations are expensed in the period in which they occur. 
Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs. 

 

h. Leases 

 

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal 
form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model. Lessor 
accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify 
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 did 
not have an impact for leases where the company is the lessor. 

 
At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration.  
 
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assessed 
whether: 

- the contract involves the use of identified asset; 
- the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset 

throughout the period of use; and 
- the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

Company as Lessee  
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 
 
(a) Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of 
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.  
 
Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, 
the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Right-of-use 
assets are subject to impairment test.  
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(b) Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments 
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that 
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. 
 
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period 
on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 
      
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the 
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.  
 
The Company has applied exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term 
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company recognizes 
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the term of 12 months. The Company 
presents right-to-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘Property, plant and 
equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘Borrowings’ in the Balance Sheet. 

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase 
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that 
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are 
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

i. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 
A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. 
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence 
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities are possible but not probable obligations as on 
reporting date, based on the available evidence. Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any 
outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income 
that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset 
is not a contingent asset and is recognised. 
 

j. Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of 
another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 
Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Financial assets and Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised 
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 
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Financial Assets: 

 

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets 

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) unless it is 
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI. 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair 
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 
 

        (ii) Impairment of financial assets 

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by 
Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments - for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of 
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk of trade receivable. The 
Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of 
its historical credit loss experience. 
 

 iii)  Derecognition of financial assets 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the 
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises an associated liability. 

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the 
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments: 

 

(i) Classification of financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability 
and an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net 
of direct issue costs. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition:  
- At fair value through profit or loss, 
- Loans and borrowings, 
- Payables or, 
- As derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, if any 
 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, they are recognized net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, including 
derivative financial instruments. 
 

                 (ii) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. 
This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated 
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.  Gains or losses on liabilities are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at 
FVTPL are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are 
satisfied. 

Loans and borrowings: 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 
 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of 
profit and loss. 
 
The Company has changed the method of calculation of amortization of loan transaction expenses from cash 
flow basis to straight-line amortization over the tenure of the loan.  
 

                (iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

k. Intangible Assets  

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an 
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for 
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. The 
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless 
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 
 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually. The 
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be 
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 
 
An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 
 

l. Government Grants  

Government grants are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in 
which the Company recognises as expenses of the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. 
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or 
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and transferred to 
statement of profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets. 
 
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose 
of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in statement 
of profit and loss in the period in which they become receivable.  

 

m. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and for the purpose of the statement of cash flows comprise cash 
at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 
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n. Cash Flow Statement  

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

o. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of Company 
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes, if any) by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the 
extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting 
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such 
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that 
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period 
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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3. Property, plant and equipment

(in Rs)

Net Block

 As at 13 April 
2020 

 Additions   Disposals 
 As at 31 March 

2021 
 As at 13 April 

2020 
 Charge for the 

period 
 Disposals 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

1 Plant and equipment Siddhi (8.6 MWp DC) -                              24,12,12,998 -                        24,12,12,998 -                                    13,87,572 -                               13,87,572               23,98,25,426 

Maiher (12.5 MWp DC) -                              35,06,32,395 -                        35,06,32,395 -                                      6,08,403 -                                 6,08,403               35,00,23,992 

2 Building Siddhi (8.6 MWp DC) -                                 1,26,67,005 -                          1,26,67,005 -                                         72,879 -                                    72,879                 1,25,94,126 

Maiher (12.5 MWp DC) -                                 1,57,77,595 -                          1,57,77,595 -                                         27,377 -                                    27,377                 1,57,50,218 

Total -                              62,02,89,993               -                62,02,89,993 -                                    20,96,231 -                               20,96,231               61,81,93,762 

Property plant and equipment pledged as security

Property, plant and equipment has been pledged as security for borrowings by the Company (note 13). 

Capitalised borrowing costs

During the period ended 31 March 2021, the amount of borrowing costs capitalised is Rs 48,58,512. The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is mentioned in note 13.

Depreciation
Sr. No. Particulars Location

Gross Block
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4. Deferred tax asset (net) (in Rs)

 Profit and loss  Other comprehensive income 

Deferred tax assets

Preliminary expenses                              24,495 -                                                                                          24,495 
Business loss (note a)                      1,96,03,504 -                                                                                  1,96,03,504 

                     1,96,27,999 -                                                                                  1,96,27,999 

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes                    (2,03,93,943) -                                                                                (2,03,93,943)
                   (2,03,93,943) -                                                                                (2,03,93,943)

Net movement on cash flow hedges (note b) -                                                                     15,16,880                                         15,16,880 
Deferred tax assets                         (7,65,944)                                    15,16,880                                           7,50,936 

a) Recognized on business losses which will be available to offset future taxable income of the Company.
b) Income tax effect on net movement of cash flow hedge.

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The income tax expenses for the period can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: (in Rs)

Particulars
 For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

Profit before tax as per the statement of profit and loss                                         31,11,436 

Statutory tax rate applicable 17.16%

Computed tax expense                                           5,33,922 

Tax effect of:

Non deductible expenses                                           2,32,022 
Total                                           2,32,022 

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss                                           7,65,944 

Effective tax rate 24.62%

Particulars
  As at 

31 March 2021 

Notes:

 Charge for the period 
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5. Non current tax assets (net) (in Rs)

Advance income tax and TDS receivable (net of provision of Rs. Nil)                                      54,950 
Total                                      54,950 

6. Trade receivables (in Rs)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Receivables from related parties (note 24)                                 19,52,465 
Total                                 19,52,465 

Break up for security details  (in Rs) 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Secured, considered good                                              -   
Unsecured, considered good                                 19,52,465 
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk [note 28(C)(a)]                                              -   
Trade receivables - credit impaired [note 28(C)(a)]                                              -   
Total                                 19,52,465 

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 24
Trade receivables are generally on terms as set out in the Power Purchase Agreement 
(PPA). 

The above trade receivables has been pledged as security for borrowings by the Company (note 13). 

7. Cash and cash equivalents (in Rs)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Balance with banks
On current accounts                                 41,66,357 
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months                                 25,00,000 

Total                                 66,66,357 

8. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  (in Rs) 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months                              2,90,00,000 
Total                              2,90,00,000 

9. Other financial assets  (in Rs) 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Unbilled revenue (note 24)                                 38,26,161 
Accrued interest                                        5,160 
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)                                      10,000 
Total                                 38,41,321 

10. Other current assets  (in Rs) 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Balances with government authorities                                      36,180 
Prepayments                                 34,57,179 
Total                                 34,93,359 

Short term deposits are made for varying periods between seven and ninety days, depending on the immediate cash

requirements of the Company and earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates.

Particulars

No trade or other receivable is due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other

person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a

partner, a director or a member.

 As at 

31 March 2021 
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11. Equity share capital (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021

Authorised share capital: 0.00
1,45,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each                            14,50,00,000 

14,50,00,000

Issued equity capital

1,31,50,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid 13,15,00,000
13,15,00,000

(a)  Reconciliation of issued share capital

Particulars
As at 31 March 2021

(in nos.)

Issue of shares during the period                              1,31,50,000 
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period 1,31,50,000

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

(c)

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Name of shareholder

Number of shares % holding

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited                            97,31,000 74%
UltraTech Cement Limited                            34,19,000 26%
Total 1,31,50,000 100%

12. Other equity (in Rs)

Profit for the period                                 23,45,492 
Other comprehensive income                               (73,22,750)

                              (49,77,258)Total

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2021

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution to all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited is the holding company with 74% shareholding and UltraTech Cement Limited is an associate of
the Company with 26% shareholding. Grasim Industries Limited is the ultimate holding company through its 100% share holding
in Aditya Birla Renewables Limited.
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13. Borrowings (in Rs)

Particulars As at  31 March 2021

Letter of credit discounted                           17,86,49,738 
Suppliers credit                           10,66,54,816 

                          28,53,04,554 

Summary of borrowing arrangements

Particulars
Gross amount

(Rs.)

Carrying value 

(Rs.)

Effective interest rate (%)
Repayment terms

Secured

Letter of credit 

discountedAxis Bank Limited 28,73,93,701 28,53,04,554 5.05% - 7.00% The loan is repayable in 58 structured quarterly instalments
beginning from 30 June 2022. The letter of credit on its
maturity will be converted into a term loan with Axis Bank
having the repayment terms as mentioned above. The
maturity of the loan is 30 September 2036.

Security

Secured

Loan covenants

Bank loan contains certain debt covenants relating to limitations on indebtness, debt-equity ratio, debt service coverage ratio, total outstanding liability to
networth ratio and fixed asset coverage ratio. These covenants are to be tested as per the terms and conditions of the loan agreement. The Company has not
defaulted on any loans which were due for payment.

Total

1) First charge on the project's tangible movable fixed asset both present and future located at Madhya Pradesh.

2) First charge on project's current assets and book debts, receivables.

3) First charge by way of hypothecation and/or assignment or creation of security interest over all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claim and demands into
and under Project Documents (including termination payment to be received from UCL under the PPA), all as amended, varied or supplemented from time
to time, any letter of credit, guarantee, performance bond provided by any counterparty of Project 1 and the Project Insurance Contracts, policies, insurance
proceeds prcured by the Company

4) First charge on all the bank accounts pertaining to Projects including the Debt Service Reserve Account.

The loan is repayable in 58 structured quarterly instalments beginning from 30 June 2022 or such later date as per the terms of the loan agreement when the
letter of credit discounted will be converted into term loan as per the credit facilities arrangement of the Company.

The lender has sanctioned a rupee term loan facility of Rs 23,30,00,000 for Siddhi Project and Rs. 33,70,00,000 for Maihar Project. This facility is secured
as follows:
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14. Other financial liabilities (in Rs)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Derivative liability                                        84,73,242 
Total                                        84,73,242 

15. Other financial liabilities (in Rs)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Liability for capital expenditures (including retention money)                                   21,91,77,044 
Provision for expenses                                          5,36,582 
Other payables                                          8,08,582 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings                                        62,61,733 
Payable to related parties (note 24)

 - Project management fees                                     1,45,28,535 
Total                                   24,13,12,476 

16. Other current liabilities (in Rs)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Statutory liabilities: 

 Tax deducted at source                                        23,03,956 
 Goods and service tax payable                                             36,180 
Total                                        23,40,136 

Note: Liability for Capital expenditures consists of mainly payments to be made to the capital creditors which is intended to be paid
by the Company within 12 months from the reporting date through the unutilised sanctioned limits of non-current borrowings as
disclosed in Note 13.
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17. Revenue from operations (in Rs)

Particulars
 For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

Solar power generation (note 24)

Siddhi (8.6 MWp DC)                                                  72,29,894 
Maiher (12.5 MWp DC)                                                  19,52,466 
Total                                                  91,82,360 

(in Rs)

Contract balances
 As at 

31 March 2021 

Contract assets -                                                           
Contract liabilities -                                                           
Receivables

Trade receivables (note 24)                                                  19,52,465 
Unbilled revenue (note 24)                                                  38,26,161 

Total                                                  57,78,626 

Transaction Price - Remaining Performance Obligation

18. Other income (in Rs)

Particulars
For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Interest income                                                    2,50,746 
Exchange difference (net)                                                  14,38,430 
Total                                                  16,89,176 

19. Depreciation expenses (in Rs)

Particulars
For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Depreciation on property, plants and equipment                                                  20,96,231 
Total                                                  20,96,231 

20. Finance costs (in Rs)

Particulars
For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Interest cost on borrowings                                                  27,10,864 
Bank charges                                                       23,217 
Total                                                  27,34,081 

21. Other expenses (in Rs)

Particulars
For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Insurance expenses                                                    1,16,374 
Legal and professional fees                                                    2,04,209 
Payment to auditors (refer note below)                                                    4,72,000 
Repairs and maintenance                                                    1,24,308 
Stamp duty on isue of shares                                                  13,49,050 
Managerial remuneration                                                                2 
Incorporation expenses                                                    1,78,431 
Rates and taxes                                                       11,935 
Car hire charges                                                    1,26,160 
Travelling expenses                                                    2,62,667 
Miscellaneous expenses                                                       84,652 
Total                                                  29,29,788 

(in Rs)

Payment to auditors (including GST)
 For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

As auditor

Audit fees                                                    4,72,000 
Total                                                    4,72,000 

The Company has one principal customer i.e., UltraTech Cement Limited for all its solar power projects. The Company has
entered into Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) with the customer for supply of solar power.

The Company operates only in one reportable segment i.e. 'generation and distribution of solar power energy'. The entire
revenue from operations pertains to solar power generation. Hence the Company has not further disaggregated operating
revenues.

Performance obligation is satisfied on the supply of power and payment due is as per the terms of the PPAs.

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized
as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in
revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance
obligation related disclosures for contracts as the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
entity's performance completed to date.

222



Aditya Birla Renewables Energy Limited

CIN: U40100MH2020PLC339362

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2021

22  Earning per share (EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars
For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Profit attributable to equity holders (in Rs)                                                           23,45,492 
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS                                                           78,06,091 
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs) 0.30                                                                   

23  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
    - Financial instruments management and policies (note 28)
    - Capital management (note 28)

a) Judgements

i) Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contract with customers

ii) Ind AS 116 - Leases

b) Estimates and assumptions

i) Taxes

ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

iii) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

Key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by management estimate, depreciates plant and machinery and building over
estimated useful lives, which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management
believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be
used.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, if any,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extend that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the period attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit /loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of Equity Shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

The management has considered all the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with the
customer in accordance with Ind AS 115, which may have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements. The Company recognises revenue for the amount it has the right to invoice (i.e., on an as-invoiced basis) as the amount
corresponds to the value it transfers to the customer.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, 'Leases'. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of
a low value.A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an specified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. The Company's property, plant and equipment is the specified asset for the evaluation of this standard.

The Company has evaluated the Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) entered into with its customer, UltraTech Cement Limited for lease
arrangements under Ind AS 116 'Leases'. The Company has concluded that the arrangement is not in the nature of lease as the customer
does not have the right to direct the use of the specified asset and entire control of the asset is with the Company.
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24  Related party transactions

(A) Holding Company

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited (74%)

(B) Ultimate Holding Company

Grasim Industries Limited (through its 100% holding in Aditya Birla Renewables Limited)

(C) Associate Company

UltraTech Cement Limited (26%)

(D) Key Managerial personnel

Mr. Ravinder Khanna, Director (upto 14 March 2021)
Mr. Amitabh Verma, Additonal Director (w.e.f. 20 March 2021)
Mr. Pavan Kumar Jain, Director (w.e.f. 13 April 2020)
Mr. Pawan Kumar Jain, Director (w.e.f. 13 April 2020)
Mr. Ram Kishore Dwivedi, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 17 October 2020 )
Mr. Samir Dash, Manager (w.e.f. 17 October 2020 )

 (in Rs.) 

 For the period from

13 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

1 Allotment of equity shares

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited                                                                         9,73,10,000 
UltraTech Cement Limited                                                                         3,41,90,000 

                                                                      13,15,00,000 

2 Reimbursement of expenses 

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited                                                                            15,13,658 

3 Inter corporate loan taken 

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited                                                                         2,00,00,000 
Interest capitalised in property plant and equipment                                                                                   9,041 

                                                                        2,00,09,041 

4 Inter corporate loan repaid 

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited 
Principal                                                                         2,00,00,000 
Interest                                                                                   9,041 

                                                                        2,00,09,041 

5 Revenue from operations

UltraTech Cement Limited                                                                            91,82,360 

6 Project management fees capitalised in property, plant and equipment

Grasim Industries Limited                                                                         2,62,67,543 

7 Managerial remuneration

Mr. Ram Kishore Dwivedi                                                                                          1 
Mr. Samir Dash                                                                                          1 

 (in Rs.) 

Sr. No. Particulars As at  31 March 2021

1 Share capital

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited 9,73,10,000
UltraTech Cement Limited 3,41,90,000

13,15,00,000

2 Project management fees

Grasim Industries Limited 1,45,28,535

3 Trade receivables

UltraTech Cement Limited 19,52,465

4 Unbilled revenue

UltraTech Cement Limited 38,26,161

5 Payable towards reimbursement of expenses 

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited 2,73,727

6 Managerial remuneration

Mr. Ram Kishore Dwivedi 1
Mr. Samir Dash 1

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Note: Related party relationships as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 24) have been identified by the management and relied upon by the 
auditors.

Name of related parties and description of relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the period :

The transactions with related parties are in the ordinary course of business and are on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. Outstanding balances at the period-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash for the period ended 31 March 2021. The Company
has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year
through examining the financial position of the related parties and the market in which the related parties operate.

Sr. No. Particulars

Details of closing balances :

Details of transactions with related parties:
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25 Segment reporting

26

(in Rs)

As at 

31 March 2021

68,66,095                   
-                             

-                             

-                             

-                             

27 Categories of Financial instruments (in Rs)

As at

 31 March 2021

Carrying value

As at

 31 March 2021

Fair value

Financial assets

Measured at amortized cost (carrying value approximates the amortized cost) :
Trade receivables (note 6)                         19,52,465                         19,52,465 
Cash and cash equivalents (note 7)                         66,66,357                         66,66,357 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (note 8)                      2,90,00,000                      2,90,00,000 
Other financial assets (note 9)                         38,41,321                         38,41,321 

Total                      4,14,60,143                      4,14,60,143 

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortized cost (carrying value approximates the amortized cost) :
Borrowings (note 13)                    28,53,04,554                    28,53,04,554 
Other financial liabilities (note 14 & 15)                    24,97,85,718                    24,97,85,718 

Total                    53,50,90,272                    53,50,90,272 

28 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

(A) Market risk

Risk Management

Market Risk
a) Foreign exchange risk Forward foreign exchange 

contracts

b) Interest rate risk Interest rate swaps and loan 
takeover for long term borrowings 
diversification

Credit risk Credit monitoring, credit limit and 
credit worthiness monitoring of the 
counter parties

Liquidity risk Borrowing facilities diversification

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

USD Rs

Interest on supplier's credit                                    4,522                               3,32,385 
Supplier's credit                             35,90,808                        26,39,41,276 

Interest due on above

For management purpose, the Company is engaged into one reportable business segment i.e. "generation and distribution of Solar Power Energy". No other operating segment has been aggregated to form
the above reportable operating segment. The Company’s revenue, result, assets and liabilities are reported to the management for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Details of micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) 

Particulars

Principal amount due to micro enterprises and small enterprises

The Company’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial perfomance of the Company.

Amount of interest paid during the year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006. -                             

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they would be identified as "Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises" on the basis of information available with the Company and
relied upon by the auditors.

Particulars

The Company has assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, bank balance, other financial assets, borrowings and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term nature of the instruments. Long term Borrowings are evaluated based on parameters such as interest rate and risk characteristic of financial project. Based on the evaluation, no impact has
been identified.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise of borrowings and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The
Company’s principal financial assets include trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and other financial assets that arise directly from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a
result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive
financial instruments, including investments and deposits, payables and borrowings.

Borrowings and other finacial liabilities Rolling cashflow, Forecasts

The sources of risks which the Company is exposed to and their management is given below:

Exposure arising from Measurement

Committed commercial transactions, financial assets 
and liabilities not denominated in Rs

Cashflow forecasting, sensitivity analysis

Trade receivables and other financial assets Ageing analysis, credit rating

Long term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis, interest rate movements

Details relating to the risks are provided here below:

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates to import of modules, wherever required.

The Company regularly evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions. The Company follows the established risk management policies. It uses derivative instruments like
forward covers/swap to hedge exposure to foreign currency risk.

5% increase in foreign exchange rates will decrease profit before tax and decrease pre tax equity by Rs 54,00,182. If the rate is decreased by 5%, the profit before tax and pre tax equity will increase
by an equal amount.

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the foreign currency exposure. The details of the foreign
currency exposure and its carrying value are as follows:

Outstanding foreign currency exposure
As at 31 March 2021

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
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(B) Interest rate risk

(C) Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.
a. Trade receivables

(D) Liquidity risk

(in Rs)

As at  31 March 2021 upto 12 months 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Above 5 years Total

Borrowings -                                                                   3,62,11,606                            2,81,64,583 22,30,17,512                                           28,73,93,701 

Other financial liabilities                          24,13,12,476 -                                        -                                        -                                                          24,13,12,476 

Total                          24,13,12,476                            3,62,11,606                            2,81,64,583 22,30,17,512                                           52,87,06,177 

(E) Capital management

(in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021

Borrowings (note 13)                      28,53,04,554 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 7)                           66,66,357 
Net debt                      27,86,38,197 

Equity (note 11 and 12)                      12,65,22,742 

Gearing ratio 2.20

The table below provides details of financial liabilities further based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in prevailing market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to
the risk due to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with floating interest rates. The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and revisits its
financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The management is responsible for
managing liquidity, funding as well as settlement. Further management monitors the Company’s liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

1% increase in interest rates will decrease profit before tax and decrease pre tax equity by Rs 28,73,937. If the rate is decreased by 1%, the profit before tax will increase and pretax equity 
will increase by an equal amount.

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and from its financing/ investing activities, including deposits with banks.

Trade receivables consist of principal customer UltraTech Cement Limited. The Company has already evaluated the credit worthiness of the party and did not find any credit risk related to
trade receivables. As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss
experience to mitigate the risk of default in payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk. 

Total trade receivables as on 31 March 2021 is Rs 19,52,465.

b. Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is generally low as the Company has transacted with reputed banks.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide maximum returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loan and borrowings, less cash and

cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

In addition, the Company has financial covenants relating to the borrowing facilities that it has taken from the lenders like debt-equity ratio, debt service coverage ratio, total outstanding
liability to networth ratio, fixed asset coverage ratio and debt service reserve account which are required to be maintained by the Company as per the terms and conditions of the loan
agreement.
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29 Cash flow hedge

USD Rs Asset Liability

Cashflow hedges

Currency swap Suppliers credit Exchange rate movement risk                                   35,90,808              26,28,42,060                                -                      75,57,523 September 2023
Interest rate swap Interest on suppliers credit Interest rate risk                                          4,522                     3,34,715                                -                        9,15,719 September 2023

Movement in hedge reserve account

(in Rs)

Realised Unrealised Total

Balance at the beginning of the period -                                                       -                                         -                                            

Add: Changes in fair value during the period* -                                                                                      84,73,242                                   84,73,242 

Less: Amount reclassified to statement of profit or loss -                                                       -                                         -                                            
Closing balance -                                                                                      84,73,242                                   84,73,242 

* This reperesents movement in derivative liability.

30  Financial instruments - fair value measurements

Fair value hierarchy

(in Rs)

Particulars Level
As at 

31 March 2021

Derivative liability at fair value through OCI Level 2                                84,73,242 
Key inputs for Level 2 fair valuation technique
Significant unobservable input
Relationship of unobservable input to fair value

The line item in the Balance Sheet that includes the above hedging instruments is 'Other Financial Liabilities'

Cashflow hedge reserve account
As at 31 March 2021

The Company’s business objective includes safe-guarding its foreign exchange borrowings against adverse foreign exchange movements. The Company has adopted a structured risk management policy to hedge all these risks within an acceptable risk limit and
an approved hedge accounting framework which allows for Fair Value and Cash Flow hedges. Hedging instruments include forward contracts, swaps and other instruments to achieve this objective. The Company has taken derivative instruments (currency swaps
and interest rate swaps) to hedge its foreign currency exposure. 

The details of derivative contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2021 is as follows:

Non current Hedged item Risk hedged
Nominal value Carrying value of hedging instrument

Expected maturity

Some of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial 
liabilities are determined (in particular the valuation techniques and inputs used).

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based on 
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
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31 Capital commitments

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021

Estimated amount to be paid for contracts executed on capital account and not 
provided for (net of advances)                              5,08,48,028 
Total                              5,08,48,028 

32 There are no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021.
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34
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Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the Company has made an assessment of the likely adverse impact on economic environment in general
and financial risks on account of COVID-19. The Company continues to assess the recoverability of the carrying amount of its assets through consideration of
various internal and external information and has concluded that these carrying amounts are recoverable as on 31 March 2021. The Management believes that it
has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the financial statements. However, the
impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions.

Prior period comparatives
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12th Floor, The Ruby 
29 Senapati Bapat Marg 
Dadar (West), Mumbai. 400 028, India 
Tel: +91 79 6608 3900

Chartered Accountants

SRBC & CO LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
Regd. Office: 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata – 700 016

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2021, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial
statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Board of Directors’ Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and
our Auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been paid
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership Number: 36738
UDIN: 21036738AAAACR8433
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

VIJAY 
MANIAR

Digitally signed 
by VIJAY MANIAR 
Date: 2021.04.22 
23:06:07 +05'30'
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date

(i) (a)   The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c)   According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

(ii) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act"). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they
are interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and,
guarantees, and securities given have been complied with by the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act for the products/services of the
Company.

(vii) (a)The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax,
cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees' state
insurance, sales- tax, service tax, duty of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax, cess, provident fund, and
other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to employees' state insurance,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
duty of custom and goods and service tax, cess, provident fund, which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute. The provisions relating to employees' state insurance,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of excise and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution
and banks. The Company has not issued any debentures.

297



Chartered Accountants

Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report

Page 6 of 8

 (ix)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instrument. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, monies
raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which they were
raised.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii)  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit
procedures performed by us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not
commented upon.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of the Act.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-lA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership Number: 36738
UDIN: 21036738AAAACR8433
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

VIJAY 
MANIAR

Digitally signed 
by VIJAY MANIAR 
Date: 2021.04.22 
23:08:32 +05'30'
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Annexure 2 referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Aditya Birla
Renewables SPV 1 Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership Number: 36738
UDIN: 21036738AAAACR8433
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 22 April 2021

VIJAY 
MANIAR

Digitally signed 
by VIJAY MANIAR 
Date: 2021.04.22 
23:09:44 +05'30'
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Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited
CIN: U40300MH2017PLC296313

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

(in Rs.)

Particulars Notes
 As at

 31 March 2021 
 As at

 31 March 2020 
Assets
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A                            2,70,14,60,295                            2,09,25,07,109 
Right of use assets 3B                                    11,91,729                                      3,73,248 
Capital work in progress 3C                                                 -                                 32,02,39,761 
Other financial assets 4                                 2,17,56,338                                                 -   
Non current tax assets (net) 5                                    75,25,906                                    70,20,805 
Other non current assets 6                                                 -                                   1,52,16,244 

                           2,73,19,34,268                            2,43,53,57,167 
Current assets
Financial assets

Trade receivables 7                                 2,04,03,885                                    40,58,902 
Cash and cash equivalents 8                                 7,13,82,268                               20,51,19,013 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 9                                 4,85,00,000                                 1,21,18,771 
Other financial assets 10                                 3,68,06,825                                 2,94,19,558 

Other current assets 11                                    78,43,957                                    48,24,314 
                              18,49,36,935                               25,55,40,558 

Total assets                            2,91,68,71,203                            2,69,08,97,725 

Equity and liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital 12                               62,61,02,400                               62,61,02,400 
Other equity 13                                 7,08,27,546                               (1,73,07,072)

                              69,69,29,946                               60,87,95,328 

Liabilities
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 14                            2,05,32,57,347                            1,88,91,53,022 
Other financial liabilities 15                                 1,36,43,132 -                                             

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16                                 2,35,68,976                                 7,39,48,477 
Provisions 17                                      9,44,796 -                                             

                           2,09,14,14,251                            1,96,31,01,499 
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises                                      5,35,823                                      7,71,542 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises                                    38,31,250                                    29,59,249 

Other financial liabilities 19                               12,35,27,617                               11,44,70,047 
Other current liabilities 20                                      5,63,335                                      8,00,060 
Provisions 21                                         68,981 -                                             

                              12,85,27,006                               11,90,00,898 

Total liabilities                            2,21,99,41,257                            2,08,21,02,397 

Total equity and liabilities                            2,91,68,71,203                            2,69,08,97,725 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar Amitabh Verma Pawan Kumar Jain   
Partner Director                        Director and CFO
Membership No.: 36738 DIN: 08990619 DIN: 07833315

Place: Mumbai
Date:  22 April 2021 Swati Patil

Company Secretary
Membership No. : ACS 61279

Place: Mumbai
Date:  22 April 2021
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Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited
CIN: U40300MH2017PLC296313

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

(in Rs.)

Income
Revenue from operations 22                  30,96,55,220                24,15,66,583 

Other income 23                       84,01,138                     60,50,426 
Total                  31,80,56,358                24,76,17,009 

Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 24                       67,02,550 -                              
Operation and maintenance expenses                    2,38,66,472                  1,55,83,559 

Depreciation expenses 3                    8,10,85,890                  6,02,80,600 
Finance costs 25                  13,79,49,937                11,16,57,480 

Other expenses 26                    2,12,22,056                  1,79,00,386 
Total                  27,08,26,905                20,54,22,025 

Profit for the year before tax                    4,72,29,453                  4,21,94,984 
Tax expenses

Current tax                            59,153                                 -   
Deferred tax 16                  (4,76,72,322)                  6,82,81,117 

MAT credit entitlement                                   -                       63,97,384 
Total tax expenses                  (4,76,13,169)                  7,46,78,501 

Net profit/(loss) for the year                    9,48,42,622                (3,24,83,517)

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (47,424)                         -                              
Net movement on cash flow hedge                     (93,67,759) (2,03,38,181)               
Income tax effect 16                       27,07,179                     47,32,342 
Other comprehensive income for the year                     (67,08,004)                (1,56,05,839)

Total comprehensive income for the year                    8,81,34,618                (4,80,89,356)

Earnings per equity share of Rs 10 each
Basic and diluted 27                                1.51 (0.62)                           

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar Amitabh Verma Pawan Kumar Jain   
Partner Director                        Director and CFO
Membership No.: 36738 DIN: 08990619 DIN: 07833315

Place: Mumbai
Date:  22 April 2021 Swati Patil

Company Secretary
Membership No. : ACS 61279

Place: Mumbai
Date:  22 April 2021
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31 March 2020
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Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited
CIN: U40300MH2017PLC296313

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 march 2021

A) Equity share capital

Particulars Amount (in Rs)

Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 1 April 2019 41,74,01,600
Issue of equity share capital 20,87,00,800
As at 31 March 2020 62,61,02,400

As at 1 April 2020 62,61,02,400
Issue of equity share capital -         -                                
As at 31 March 2021 62,61,02,400

B) Other equity (in Rs)

Particulars
Surplus in the 

statement of profit 
and loss 

Securities premium  Total 

As at 1 April 2019 1,82,60,236 -                             1,82,60,236

Additions during the year (note 13) (3,24,83,517) 1,25,22,048 (3,55,67,308)

Closing as at 31 March 2020                 (1,42,23,281)                 1,25,22,048                  (1,73,07,072)

Additions during the year (note 13) 9,48,42,622                                 -   8,81,34,618

Closing as at 31 March 2021                   8,06,19,341                 1,25,22,048                    7,08,27,546 

Summary of significant accounting policies (note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar Amitabh Verma Pawan Kumar Jain   
Partner Director                        Director and CFO
Membership No.: 36738 DIN: 08990619 DIN: 07833315

Place: Mumbai
Date:  22 April 2021

Swati Patil
Company Secretary
Membership No. : ACS 61279

Place: Mumbai
Date:  22 April 2021
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2,08,70,080
6,26,10,240

Number of shares

4,17,40,160

Other comprehensive 
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-                                      
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Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited
CIN: U40300MH2017PLC296313
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

(in Rs)

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

For the year ended 
31 March 2020

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the period before tax as per statement of profit and loss                                  4,72,29,453                                4,21,94,984 

Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses                                  8,10,85,890 6,02,80,600                              
Finance costs                                13,74,39,989 11,15,19,416                            
Interest income                                    (66,63,306) (60,50,426)                                
Stamp duty on issue of shares -                                               22,16,223                                 
Operating profit before working capital changes                                25,90,92,026                              21,01,60,797 

Working capital adjustments
Increase in trade receivables                                 (1,63,44,984) (37,03,788)                                
Increase in other current assets                                    (30,19,643) (59,98,244)                                
Increase in trade payables                                        6,36,282 25,56,676                                 
Increase in other financial liabilities                                      39,88,418 37,67,810                                 
Increase in other financial assets                                    (78,21,342) (80,71,646)                                
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities                                      (2,36,725) 6,15,432                                   
Cash generated from operating activities                                23,62,94,032                              19,93,27,037 
Income taxes paid                                      (5,64,254) (65,55,057)                                
Cash generated from operating activities                                23,57,29,778                              19,27,71,980 

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of tangible assets including capital work in progress                               (39,46,04,154)                            (95,26,74,123)
Interest received                                      78,87,702                                1,04,86,118 
Fixed deposits of original maturity of more than three months placed                                 (5,77,78,612) (66,18,771)                                
Inter corporate loan given (2,00,00,000)                               7,50,00,000                              
Repayment against inter corporate loans given                                  2,00,00,000 (7,50,00,000)                             
Cash used in investing activities                               (44,44,95,064)                            (94,88,06,776)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares -                                                                            22,12,22,848 
Stamp duty on issue of shares -                                                                               (22,16,223)
Proceeds from borrowings                                26,92,33,203                              78,13,57,772 
Repayment of borrowings                                 (5,07,46,367) (4,52,14,239)                             
Proceeds from inter corporate loan -                                               6,25,00,000
Repayment of inter corporate loan -                                               (6,25,00,000)                             
Loan transaction expenses                                    (53,34,353) -                                            
Interest paid                               (13,81,23,942)                              (9,75,97,189)
Cash generated from financing activities                                  7,50,28,541                              85,75,52,969 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                               (13,37,36,745)                              10,15,18,173 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year                                20,51,19,013                              10,36,00,840 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                                  7,13,82,268                              20,51,19,013 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
(in Rs)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 
 As at 

31 March 2020 

On current accounts                                  1,17,61,742                                2,36,19,013 
Fixed deposits with original maturity of less than three months                                  5,96,20,526                              18,15,00,000 

                                 7,13,82,268                              20,51,19,013 

Reconcilition of liabilties from financing activities for the period ended 31 March 2021 (in Rs.)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2020 
 Cashflows (net) 

 Non cash changes
current/non-current 

classifications/ transaction cost 

 As at 
31 March 2021 

Borrowings-non-current 1,88,91,53,022                   21,84,86,836                  (5,43,82,511)                               2,05,32,57,347                         
Other financial liabilities (current maturity of long term debt) 3,03,04,336                        -                                   3,95,22,721                                 6,98,27,057                              
Borrowings-current -                                      -                                   -                                               -                                            
Total 1,91,94,57,358                   21,84,86,836                  (1,48,59,790)                               2,12,30,84,404                         

Reconcilition of liabilties from financing activities for the period ended 31 March 2020 (in Rs.)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2019 
 Cashflows (net) 

 Non cash changes
current/non-current 

classifications/ transaction cost 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

Borrowings-non-current 1,10,80,84,528                   73,61,43,533                  4,49,24,961                                 1,88,91,53,022                         
Other financial liabilities (current maturity of long term debt) 2,98,55,650                        -                                   4,48,686                                      3,03,04,336                              
Borrowings-current -                                      -                                   -                                               -                                            
Total 1,13,79,40,178                   73,61,43,533                  4,53,73,647                                 1,91,94,57,358                         

Summary of significant accounting policies (note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar Amitabh Verma Pawan Kumar Jain   
Partner Director                        Director and CFO
Membership No.: 36738 DIN: 08990619 DIN: 07833315

Place: Mumbai
Date:  22 April 2021

Swati Patil
Company Secretary
Membership No. : ACS 61279

Place: Mumbai
Date:  22 April 2021

Note: Cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method set out in Ind AS 7, prescribed under Companies Act (Indian Accounting Standard Rules, 2015) of the Companies Act,
2013.
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Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited 
CIN: U40300MH2017PLC296313 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 
1. Corporate information 
   

Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited ('the Company') is a public Company incorporated on 19 June 
2017 and domiciled in India having its registered office located at A-4, Aditya Birla Centre, S K Ahire 
Marg, Worli, Mumbai – 400 030, Maharashtra, India. Its Holding Company is Aditya Birla Renewables 
Limited with 74% shareholding and UltraTech Cement Limited is an associate of the Company with 26% 
shareholding. 
  

The primary business of the Company is to generate and supply solar power to UltraTech Cement Limited 
for captive consumption.   
 

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 22 
April 2021. 
 

2.    Significant accounting policies 
 

2.1 Basis of preparation 
 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable. 

 

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets 
and liabilities measured at carrying value which approximates the amortized cost and derivative 
instruments are measured at fair values at each balance sheet date, as explained in the accounting policies 
below.  
 

In addition, the carrying values of recognised assets and liabilities designated as hedged items in fair 
value hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are adjusted to record changes in the fair 
values attributable to the risks that are being hedged in effective hedge relationships. 

 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('Rs'), which is also the Company’s functional 
currency. 

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies 
             

a. Current versus non-current classification 
 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current 
classification as per the requirements of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 
-  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
-  Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
-  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period 
 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 
 A liability is current when: 
-  It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
-  It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
-  It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
-  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period 
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Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited 
CIN: U40300MH2017PLC296313 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
 

The operating cycle is the time between the development/acquisition of assets for power generation 
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle. 
 

b. Foreign currencies 
 

Transactions and balances 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of 
the transactions. 
 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional 
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 
 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss.  
 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair 
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is 
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is 
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., 
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are 
also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

 
c. Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet 
date. 
 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
-   In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
-   In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 
 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 

The Company uses valuation techniques, wherever required, that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

306



Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques, wherever required, for which the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable other than quoted 
prices include in level 1 

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques, wherever required, for which the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 

 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities 
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair 
value hierarchy as explained above. 
 

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial 
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured 
using various valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets 
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair 
values. Judgments include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair values of financial 
instruments. 
 

d. Revenue from contract with customer 
 

The Company is in the business of supply of power to its customer. Revenue from contracts with 
customer is recognized when solar power generated is transferred to the customer at an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods. 

 

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized. 
 
(i) Revenue from sale of solar power  
 

Revenue from sale of power is recognised net of estimated rebates and other similar allowances when 
the units of electricity is delivered. 
 

Revenue from such contracts is recognised over time for each unit of electricity delivered at the  
pre-determined rate as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the 
Company's performance obligation, as it best depicts the value to the customer and complete 
satisfaction of performance obligation. 
 

The customer is billed on a monthly basis and is given average credit period of 7 to 15 days for 
payment. 
  
There is no significant judgement involved while evaluating the timing as to when customers obtain 
control of promised goods. 
 
Contract balances 
(a) Contract assets  
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the 
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the 
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned 
consideration that is conditional. 
 
(b) Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company’s unconditional right to an amount of consideration (i.e., only 
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).  
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

(c) Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company 
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer 
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability 
is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract 
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 
 
(ii) Interest income 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable. Interest income on fixed deposit receipts is included in other income in the 
statement of profit and loss. 
 
(iii) Income from sale of Verified Carbon Standard (VCS) Scheme 
 
Income from VCS pertains to the sale of Verified Carbon Units generated from the Company’s solar 
power plants. Since the quantum of accruals on such units sold cannot be ascertained with reasonable 
certainty, this income is accounted on acceptance basis. 

  

e. Taxes 

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.  
 

Current income tax 
 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. 
 

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting period 
in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and other 
applicable tax laws. 
 

Current income tax, relating to items recognised outside profit or loss, is recognised outside profit or 
loss in other comprehensive income (OCI). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction in other comprehensive income. The management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate. 

 
Deferred tax 
 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 
 

Tax relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income is recognized in other 
comprehensive income and not in the statement of profit or loss. 
 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and 
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 
 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting 
date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority.  
 
Minimum alternate tax 

 
The Company has decided to opt for concessional tax rates with effect from 01 April 2019, as 
introduced by The Taxation Laws Amendment Act (2019) and accordingly MAT provisions are not 
applicable to the Company. 

f. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or construction cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is carried at historical cost and is not subject 
to depreciation. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to 
its location and working condition for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any 
expected costs of decommissioning. 
  

The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company in future periods and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into operations, such as 
repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the period in 
which they are incurred. 
 

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or replacement or when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
replacement or retirement of an item of PPE, is determined as the difference between the sales 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets 

- Plant and equipment: 30 years 
- Building: 30 years  

The Company, based on technical assessment made by management estimate, depreciates plant and 
equipment and building over estimated useful lives, which are different from the useful life prescribed 
in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The Management believes that these estimated useful lives 
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. 
 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under 
installation/development as at the reporting date and is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment 
loss, if any. 

g. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized 
as part of the cost of the asset. All other expenses pertaining to borrowing obligations are expensed in 
the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity 
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences 
to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 
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h. Leases 
 

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including evaluating the substance of transactions involving 
the legal form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged under Ind AS 17. 
Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in 
Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 did not have an impact for leases where the company is the lessor. 
 
At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use 
of an identified asset, the Company assessed whether: 

- the contract involves the use of identified asset; 
- the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset 

throughout the period of use; and 
- the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

The Company has adopted modified retrospective approach as per para C8 (c)(ii) of IND AS 116 - Leases, 
effective from annual reporting period beginning 01 April 2019. Accordingly, comparatives for the year 
ended 31 March 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted.  
 
Right-of-use assets 
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of 
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the 
Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the 
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Right-of-use 
assets are subject to impairment test.  
 
Lease liabilities 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments 
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that 
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. 
 
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the 
period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 
      
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at 
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.  
 
The Company has applied exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short 
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company 
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the term of 12 months. 
The Company presents right-to-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in 
‘Property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘Borrowings’ in the Balance Sheet. 
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i. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed 
as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation 
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 
Contingent liabilities are possible but not probable obligations as on reporting date, based on the 
available evidence. Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in 
settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities. 
 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition 
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, 
then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. 
 

j. Employee Benefits 
 

Short-Term Employee Benefits: Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual 
basis.  

Defined Contribution Plans: Contribution payable to the recognised provident fund and approved 
superannuation scheme, which are substantially defined contribution plans, are recognised as an expense 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the 
contribution. 

The provident fund contribution as specified under the law is paid to the Regional Provident Fund 
Commissioner. 

Defined Benefit Plans: The obligation in respect of defined benefit plans, which covers Gratuity and 
other post-employment medical benefits, are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end 
of each reporting period using project unit credit method.  

The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of 
the period, and any shortfall in the Fund size maintained by the Trust set-up by the Company is 
additionally provided for. 

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if 
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance 
Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they 
occur.  

Re-measurement recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reflected immediately in retained 
earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Defined benefit 
costs are categorised as follows:  

- service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on 
curtailments and settlements);  

- net interest expense or income; and re-measurement. 

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss in the line item ‘Employee Benefits Expense’.  
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The present value of the Defined Benefit Plan liability is calculated using a discount rate, which is 
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. 

The retirement benefit obligation, recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus 
in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the 
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in 
the future contribution to the plans.  

Other Long-Term Benefits: Long-term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an 
actuarial valuation at the end of each reporting period. Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are recognised 
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

k. Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 

Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 
Financial assets and Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured 
at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit 
or loss. 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted 
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

Financial Assets: 
 
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets 

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI. 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost 
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 
 

        (ii) Impairment of financial assets 
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end 
of each reporting period. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach 
permitted by Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments - for recognition of impairment loss allowance. 
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit 
risk of trade receivable. The Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables 
using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience. 
 
 
 

 (iii)  Derecognition of financial assets 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to 
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pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises an 
associated liability. 

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments: 
 

(i) Classification of financial liabilities and equity instruments 
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or 
as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of 
a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition:  
- At fair value through profit or loss, 
- Loans and borrowings, 
- Payables or, 
- As derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, if any 
 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, they are recognized net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
 

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, 
including derivative financial instruments. 
 

                 (ii) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as 
FVTPL. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that 
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.  Gains 
or losses on liabilities are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL are designated as such at the initial date of 
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. 

Loans and borrowings: 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. 
 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs 
in the statement of profit and loss. 
 

                (iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities 
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The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company’s obligations 
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 
 

l.  Derivate financial instruments and hedge accounting 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and swaps 
to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at 
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured 
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial 
liabilities when the fair value is negative. 
 

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit 
or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later 
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment 
if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or 
non-financial liability. 
 
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as: 
- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset 

or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment  
 

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable 
to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast 
transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment 
 

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge 
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management 
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk 
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the 
hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will 
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure 
to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges 
are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are 
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout 
the financial reporting periods for which they were designated. 
 

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below: 
 

Fair value hedges 
The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of 
the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as 
finance costs.  For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to 
carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge.   
 
If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or 
loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent 
cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is 
recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss. 
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Cash flow hedges 

The Company designates derivative contracts or non-derivative Financial Assets / Liabilities as 
hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for 
foreign exchange exposure on highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or 
liability or forecast cash transactions. When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging 
instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised in the cash 
flow hedging reserve being part of Other Comprehensive Income. Any ineffective portion of changes 
in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the 
hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is 
discontinued prospectively.  

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on 
the hedging instrument recognised in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective 
remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss upon the occurrence of the underlying transaction. If the forecasted transaction is no longer 
expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

m. Intangible Assets  

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of 
each reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 
 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually. 
The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life 
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a 
prospective basis. 
 
An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 
 

n. Government Grants  

Government grants are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the 
periods in which the Company recognises as expenses of the related costs for which the grants are 
intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the 
Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as 
deferred revenue in the balance sheet and transferred to statement of profit and loss on a systematic 
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets. 
 
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for 
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they become receivable.  
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o. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above. 
 

p. Cash Flow Statement  

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit before tax is adjusted for 
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating 
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated. 

q. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of 
Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes, if any) by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a 
fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a 
fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights 
issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of 
equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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3 Property, plant and equipment

A.Owned Assets 
(in Rs)

Net Block
 At 

01 April 2020 
 Additions   Disposals 

  At 
31 March 2021 

 At 
01 April 2020 

 Charge for the year Disposals
  At 

31 March 2021 
  At 

31 March 2021 

1 Freehold land Bijapur (8 MWp DC) 3,64,98,677           -                           -                                         3,64,98,677 -                                  -                                       -                                       -                                                                               3,64,98,677 

Andhra Pradesh (9.625 MWp DC) 5,25,86,005                            31,29,260 -                                         5,57,15,265 -                                  -                                       -                                       -                                                                               5,57,15,265 

2 Plant & equipment Pune (0.973 MWp DC) 5,35,48,294           -                           -                                         5,35,48,294 38,59,763                                                     17,85,084 -                                                                         56,44,847                                    4,79,03,448 

Kharia Khangar (6 MWp DC) 22,93,71,419         -                           -                                       22,93,71,419 1,63,78,743                                                  76,45,714 -                                                                      2,40,24,457                                  20,53,46,962 

Hotgi (0.973 MWp DC) 5,29,63,909           -                           -                                         5,29,63,909 37,26,755                                                     17,65,464 -                                                                         54,92,219                                    4,74,71,690 

 Bijapur (8 MWp DC) 33,41,22,797         -                           -                                       33,41,22,797 2,24,39,619                                               1,11,37,426 -                                                                      3,35,77,045                                  30,05,45,752 

Sewagram (5 MWp DC) 19,68,25,549         44,736                     -                                       19,68,70,285 1,06,50,235                                                  65,61,681 -                                                                      1,72,11,916                                  17,96,58,369 

Rawan (12.5 MWp DC) 42,24,17,015         1,65,888                  -                                       42,25,82,903 1,60,38,791                                               1,40,83,642 -                                                                      3,01,22,433                                  39,24,60,470 

Rajshree (17.5 MWp DC) 55,94,10,279         -                           -                                       55,94,10,279 91,81,803                                                  1,86,47,009 -                                                                      2,78,28,812                                  53,15,81,467 

Hirmi (6.25 MWp DC) 21,72,90,266         -                           -                                       21,72,90,266 79,80,416                                                     72,43,009 -                                                                      1,52,23,425                                  20,20,66,841 

Andhra Pradesh (9.625 MWp DC) -                                     32,91,04,029 -                                       32,91,04,029 -                                                               78,65,619 -                                                                         78,65,619                                  32,12,38,410 

Baikunth (11.05 MW) -                                     32,55,44,321             32,55,44,321 -                                                               27,92,899 -                                                                         27,92,899                                  32,27,51,422 

3 Building Kharia Khangar (6 MWp DC) 1,00,29,340           -                           -                                         1,00,29,340 7,14,519                                                         3,34,311 -                                                                         10,48,830                                       89,80,510 

Sewagram (5 MWp DC) 63,42,748              -                           -                                            63,42,748 3,45,231                                                         2,11,425 -                                                                           5,56,656                                       57,86,092 

Rajshree (17.5 MWp DC) 92,91,080              -                           -                                            92,91,080 1,24,274                                                         3,10,737 -                                                                           4,35,011                                       88,56,069 

Rawan (12.5 MWp DC) 26,35,499              -                           -                                            26,35,499 1,00,245                                                            88,559 -                                                                           1,88,804                                       24,46,695 

Hirmi (6.25 MWp DC) 7,42,002                -                           -                                              7,42,002 27,376                                                               24,734 -                                                                              52,110                                         6,89,892 

Andhra Pradesh (9.625 MWp DC) -                         1,66,46,618             -                                         1,66,46,618 -                                                                 3,98,303 -                                                                           3,98,303                                    1,62,48,315 

Baikunth (11.05 MW) -                         1,45,06,641             -                                         1,45,06,641 -                                                                 1,24,532                                     1,24,532                                    1,43,82,109 

4 Office equipment Rawan (12.5 MWp DC) -                         6,96,352                  -                                              6,96,352 -                                                                    14,118 -                                                                              14,118                                         6,82,234 

5 Laptop -                            1,67,162                  -                                              1,67,162                                      -                                     17,556 -                                                                              17,556                                         1,49,606 

       2,18,40,74,879 69,00,05,007           -                           2,87,40,79,886         9,15,67,770                     8,10,51,821                         -                                       17,26,19,592                            2,70,14,60,295                              

As at 31 March 2020 (in Rs)

Net Block
 At 

01 April 2019 
 Additions   Disposals 

  At 
31 March 2020 

 At 
01 April 2019 

 Charge for the year Disposals
  At 

31 March 2020 
  At 

31 March 2020 

1 Freehold land Bijapur (8 MWp DC)             3,64,81,907 16,770                     -                                         3,64,98,677 -                                  -                                       -                                       -                                                                               3,64,98,677 
Andhra Pradesh (9.625 MWp DC) -                                       5,25,86,005               5,25,86,005 -                                  -                                       -                                       -                                                                               5,25,86,005 

2 Plant & equipment Pune (0.973 MWp DC)             5,35,48,294 -                           -                                         5,35,48,294                         20,69,788                              17,89,975 -                                                                         38,59,763                                    4,96,88,532 
Kharia Khangar (6 MWp DC)           22,93,71,419 -                           -                                       22,93,71,419                         87,12,082                              76,66,661 -                                                                      1,63,78,743                                  21,29,92,676 
Hotgi (0.973 MWp DC)             5,29,63,909 -                           -                                         5,29,63,909                         19,56,456                              17,70,299 -                                                                         37,26,755                                    4,92,37,154 

 Bijapur (8 MWp DC)           33,41,22,797 -                           -                                       33,41,22,797                      1,12,71,678                           1,11,67,941 -                                                                      2,24,39,619                                  31,16,83,178 
Sewagram (5 MWp DC)           19,70,75,549 -                                              2,50,000             19,68,25,549                         40,72,843                              65,77,392 -                                                                      1,06,50,235                                  18,61,75,314 
Rawan (12.5 MWp DC)           42,15,45,477 8,71,538                  -                                       42,24,17,015                         19,44,125                           1,40,94,666 -                                                                      1,60,38,791                                  40,63,78,224 
Rajshree (17.5 MWp DC) -                         55,94,10,279           -                                       55,94,10,279 -                                                               91,81,803 -                                                                         91,81,803                                  55,02,28,476 
Hirmi (6.25 MWp DC)           21,61,73,961 11,16,305                -                                       21,72,90,266                           7,46,773                              72,33,643 -                                                                         79,80,416                                  20,93,09,850 

3 Building Kharia Khangar (6 MWp DC)             1,00,29,340 -                           -                                         1,00,29,340                           3,79,292                                3,35,227 -                                                                           7,14,519                                       93,14,821 
Sewagram (5 MWp DC)                63,42,748 -                           -                                            63,42,748                           1,33,227                                2,12,004 -                                                                           3,45,231                                       59,97,517 
Rajshree (17.5 MWp DC) -                         92,91,080                -                                            92,91,080 -                                                                 1,24,274 -                                                                           1,24,274                                       91,66,806 
Rawan (12.5 MWp DC)                26,35,499 -                           -                                            26,35,499                              12,155                                   88,090 -                                                                           1,00,245                                       25,35,254 
Hirmi (6.25 MWp DC)                  7,42,002 -                           -                                              7,42,002                                2,575                                   24,801 -                                                                              27,376                                         7,14,625 

Total        1,56,10,32,902             62,32,91,977                    2,50,000          2,18,40,74,879                      3,13,00,994                           6,02,66,776                                           -                                  9,15,67,770                               2,09,25,07,109 

B. Right of Use Assets 
(in Rs)

Land 

                 3,87,072 
-                         

                 3,87,072 
8,52,550                

Balance as at 31 March 2021                12,39,622 

-                         
                    13,824 
                    13,824 
                    34,069 

Balance as at 31 March 2021                     47,893 

                 3,73,248 
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021                11,91,729 

       2,70,26,52,024 

C The details of capital work in progress are as follows:
(in Rs)

 At 
31 March 2021

As at 
31 March 2020

                                                   -             31,99,13,261 

Baikunth (11 MWp DC)                                                    -                    3,26,500 
                                                   -   32,02,39,761         

Capitalised borrowing costs

Property plant and equipment pledged as security
Property, plant and equipment has been pledged as security for borrowings by the Company (note 14). 

Depreciation

Total

Sr. No. Particulars Location
Gross Block

Depreciation
Sr. No. Particulars Location

Description 

Gross Block

Total

Grand Total (A+B)

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020

 
Cost 
Balance as on 01 April 2019 due to adoption of Ind AS 116
Addition during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Additions during the year

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as on 01 April 2019 due to adoption of Ind AS 116
Depreciation for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Depreciation for the year

Plant name

Andhra Pradesh (9.625 MWp DC)

During the year, the amount of borrowing costs capitalised is Rs 1,05,11,269 (31 March 2020: Rs 76,56,815).  The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation has been approximately 9% for Inter Corporate Debts and rates for borrowings from banks is as mentioned in note 14.
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4 Other financial assets (in Rs)

Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months                     2,13,97,383                                     -   
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 3,58,955                                     -   
Total 2,17,56,338                                     -   

5 Non current tax assets (net) (in Rs)

Advance income tax and TDS receivable {net of provision Rs 59,153 (PY: Rs Nil)} 75,25,906 70,20,805
Total 75,25,906 70,20,805

6 Other non current assets (in Rs)

Capital advances                                     -                            2,53,700 
Derivative assets                                     -                       1,49,62,544 
Total -                                                     1,52,16,244 

7 Trade receivables (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Receivables from related parties (note 28) 1,98,24,765 35,51,050
Other receivables 5,79,120 5,07,852
Total 2,04,03,885 40,58,902

Break up for security details (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Secured, considered good -                                 -                                 
Unsecured, considered good 2,04,03,885 40,58,902
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk [note 34(C)(a)] -                                 -                                 
Trade receivables - credit impaired [note 34(C)(a)] -                                 -                                 
Total 2,04,03,885 40,58,902

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 28

8 Cash and cash equivalents (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Balance with banks

On current accounts 1,17,61,742 2,36,19,013
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 5,96,20,526 18,15,00,000

Total 7,13,82,268 20,51,19,013

9 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months 4,85,00,000 1,21,18,771
Total                     4,85,00,000                     1,21,18,771 

10 Other financial assets (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
 As at 

31 March 2020 
Unbilled revenue (note 28) 3,03,29,832 2,27,05,365
Accrued interest 86,073 1,61,193
Loans & advances 63,90,920 63,90,920
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)                                     -   1,62,080
Total                     3,68,06,825                     2,94,19,558 

11 Other current assets (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Balances with government authorities 27,466 22,966
Prepayments 50,47,279 47,62,414
Other advances 27,69,212 38,934
Total 78,43,957 48,24,314

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
 As at 

31 March 2020 

No trade or other receivable is due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or
other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Short term deposits are made for varying periods between seven and ninety days, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company and

earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates.

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2020 

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2020 

As at 
31 March 2021

As at 
31 March 2021
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12 Equity share capital (in Rs)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020 

Authorized share capital:
6,40,00,000 (PY : 6,40,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 64,00,00,000 64,00,00,000

64,00,00,000 64,00,00,000

Issued equity capital
62,61,02,400 62,61,02,400

62,61,02,400 62,61,02,400

(a)  Reconciliation of issued share capital

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year                     6,26,10,240              6,26,10,240 

Issue of shares during the year                                     -                                -   
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 6,26,10,240 6,26,10,240

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

(c)

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding
                    4,63,31,577 74%                  4,63,31,577 74%
                    1,62,78,663 26%                  1,62,78,663 26%

6,26,10,240 100% 6,26,10,240 100%

13 Other equity (in Rs)

Opening balance                   (1,73,07,072)              1,82,60,236 
Securities premium                                     -                1,25,22,048 
Profit/(loss) for the year                     9,48,42,622             (3,24,83,517)
Other comprehensive income [Net off movement on cashflow hedges (net of tax)]                      (67,08,004)             (1,56,05,839)

                    7,08,27,546             (1,73,07,072)

Nature & purpose of reserve 
Securities premium is credited when shares are issued at premium. It can be used for the purposes mentioned in Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

UltraTech Cement Limited
Total

 As at 
31 March 2020 

Particulars

Name of shareholder

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited

As at 
 31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution to all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited is the holding company with 74% shareholding and UltraTech Cement Limited is an associate of the Company with 26% shareholding. Grasim Industries
Limited is the ultimate holding company through its 100%  share holding in Aditya Birla Renewables Limited.

Total

6,26,10,240  (PY : 6,26,10,240) equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
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14 Borrowings (in Rs)

Secured
Term loan
Rupee term loan                 48,71,46,453               51,93,93,764 
Letter of credit discounted                 91,79,76,526 80,91,69,713
Buyers credit                 28,97,59,752 29,74,59,178
Suppliers credit                 42,82,01,673 29,34,34,703

2,12,30,84,404 1,91,94,57,358
Current  
Current maturity of long term debt (note 19)                 (6,98,27,057)                (3,03,04,336)

                (6,98,27,057)                (3,03,04,336)
Total 2,05,32,57,347 1,88,91,53,022

Summary of borrowing arrangements

Particulars
Gross amount

(Rs.)
Carrying value 

(Rs.)
Effective interest 

rate (%)
Repayment terms

Secured
Rupee term loan
Citibank N.A. 23,58,66,640               23,25,28,067              6.21% - 6.87%  The loan is repayable in 74 quarterly instalments starting from 15 February 

2019. 

ICICI Bank Limited 25,35,54,496               25,12,29,580              7.45%- 8.35%  The loan is repayable in 74 quarterly instalments starting from 15 February 
2019. 

ICICI Bank Limited (Gujarat) 35,38,632                    33,88,806                   8.25%- 9.30%  The loan is repayable in 76 equal quarterly instalments which should not 
exceed the maturity date i.e. 31 December 2038 

Letter of credit 
Ratnakar Bank Limited 65,54,92,992               65,44,87,803              5.95% - 9.00% The loan is repayable in 76 quarterly instalments at the % repayment agreed 

in the loan agreement which should not exceed the maturity date i.e. 31 
March 2039. The letter of credit on its maturity will be converted into a term 
loan having the repayment terms as mentioned above.

Axis Bank Limited 12,23,76,625               12,12,07,364              5.25%- 6.30% The loan is repayable in 60 quarterly instalments at the % repayment agreed 
in the loan agreement which should not exceed the maturity date i.e. 31 
March 2036. The letter of credit on its maturity will be converted into a term 
loan having the repayment terms as mentioned above.

ICICI Bank Limited 14,31,96,032               14,22,81,359              5.85% -7.60%  The loan is repayable in 76 equal quarterly instalments which should not 
exceed the maturity date i.e. 31 December 2038. The letter of credit on its 
maturity will be converted into a term loan having the repayment terms as 
mentioned above. 

Buyers credit
Ratnakar Bank Limited 26,61,94,494               28,97,59,752              6.36% - 6.60%  The loan is repayable in 76 quarterly instalments at the % repayment agreed 

in the loan agreement which should not exceed the maturity date i.e. 31 
March 2039. 

Suppliers credit
Ratnakar Bank Limited 28,02,82,159               27,94,57,788              7.27%- 7.32%  The loan is repayable in 76 quarterly instalments at the % repayment agreed 

in the loan agreement which should not exceed the maturity date i.e. 31 
March 2039. 

Axis Bank Limited 14,68,56,579               14,87,43,885              6.35%  The loan is repayable in 60 quarterly instalments at the % repayment agreed 
in the loan agreement which should not exceed the maturity date i.e. 31 
March 2036. 

Security 

Loan covenants

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2020 

Bank loan contains certain debt covenants relating to limitations on indebtness, debt-equity ratio, debt service coverage ratio, total outstanding liability to networth ratio and fixed asset coverage ratio. These
covenants are to be tested as per the terms and conditions of the respective loan agreements. The Company has not defaulted on any loans which were due for payment.

 As at 
31 March 2021 

Buyers credit and suppliers credit has been fully hedged for foreign exchange and interest rate fluctuation. The above figures are as per IND AS (including mark to market and amortisation).

The above borrowing arrangements are secured as follows:

1) First charge on the assets of the projects, both present and future, located at Pune, Hotgi, Kharia Khangar, Bijapur, Sewagram, Chhattisgarh, Andhra Pradesh and Karnataka.

2) Exclusive charge on respective project's current assets, all cashflows, receivables, commissions, revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present and future, uncalled capital, present and future.

3) Exclusive charge on respective collection account, debt service reserve account and other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower except dividend distribution account.
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15 Other financial liabilities
(in Rs)

As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020 

                           1,36,43,132 -                               
1,36,43,132 -                               

16 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

 Profit and loss Other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets
Preliminary expenses                     (2,28,922)                                   1,25,372                                            -                        (1,03,550)
Share issue expenses                        (15,081)                                      15,081                                            -                                    -   
Business loss(note b)              (22,20,16,109)                          (13,51,48,171)                                            -                 (35,71,64,280)

             (22,22,60,112)                          (13,50,07,718)                                            -                 (35,72,67,830)
Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes                30,13,27,709                              8,73,35,396                                            -                   38,86,63,105 

               30,13,27,709                              8,73,35,396                                            -                   38,86,63,105 
Net movement on cash flow hedges (note a)                   (51,19,120)                                             -                               (27,07,179)                    (78,26,299)

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets)                  7,39,48,477                            (4,76,72,322)                             (27,07,179)                   2,35,68,976 

b) Recognized on business losses which will be available to offset future taxable income of the Company.

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
 (in Rs.) 

Particulars 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020 

Profit before tax as per the Statement of Profit and Loss                            4,72,29,453                   4,21,94,984 

Applicable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%

Computed tax expense                            1,18,87,653                   1,06,20,477 

Income tax effect of: 

Impact of additional depreciation in opening WDV of fixed assets as per Income Tax notification                          (5,95,59,976) -                               

Amortisation of loan transacation expenses -                                                           (18,21,357)

Impact of adoption of new tax regime and change in tax rates -                                                          5,86,98,370 

Non deductible expenses -                                                               5,57,779 

Others -                                                               2,25,847 

Total                          (5,95,59,976)                   5,76,60,639 

Net tax expense as per statement of Profit and Loss                          (4,76,72,322)                   6,82,81,117 

Effective tax rate -100.94% 161.82%

17 Provisions (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
 As at 

31 March 2020 
Gratuity                                 4,97,238 -                               

Leave encashment                                 4,47,558 -                               

Total 9,44,796 -                               

18 Trade payables (in Rs)

As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (note 31)                                 5,35,823                        7,71,542 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises (including related party dues [note 28] )                               38,31,250                      29,59,249 

43,67,073 37,30,791

Terms and conditions of trade payables:        

19 Other financial liabilities (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
 As at 

31 March 2020 
Current maturity of long term debt (note 14)                            6,98,27,057                   3,03,04,336 
Liability for capital expenditures (including retention money)                            1,34,05,816                   3,61,06,898 
Provision for expenses                               57,57,134                      19,62,596 
Other payables                               25,09,631                      30,05,531 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings                            1,83,83,488                   1,82,68,655 
Payable to related parties (note 28)
 - Project management fees                            1,35,39,637                   2,44,40,604 
 - Reimbursement of expenses                                 1,04,854 -                               

                                           -                          2,13,867 
                                           -                          1,67,560 

                         12,35,27,617                 11,44,70,047 

20 Other current liabilities (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
 As at 

31 March 2020 

Statutory liabilities: 
 - Tax deducted at source                                 3,51,603                        3,53,383 
 - Goods and service tax payable                                 1,72,521                        4,46,677 
 - Profession tax payable                                      1,400 -                               
 - Provident fund payable                                    37,811 -                               
Total 5,63,335 8,00,060

21 Provisions (in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Gratuity                                      2,299 -                               
Leave encashment                                    66,682 -                               
Total 68,981 -                               

Total

Particulars

Derivative liability

Total

  As at 
31 March 2021 

Total

 - Deputation charges 
 - Purchase of material

Notes:

a) Income tax effect on net movement of cash flow hedge.

Particulars

Trade payables are non interest bearing and credit period varies as per the terms of the contract/work order/purchase order executed with each vendor.

Particulars
  As at 

31 March 2020 

Credit for the year
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22 Revenue from operations (in Rs)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020 

Solar power generation (note 28)
0.973 MWp DC at Pune (Maharashtra)                                 63,01,720                           68,07,645 
6 MWp DC at Kharia Khangar (Rajasthan)                              3,11,45,375                        3,35,01,337 

0.973 MWp DC at Hotgi (Maharashtra)                                 55,13,393                           64,01,587 

9.625 MWp DC Kadapa (Andhra Pradesh)                              3,14,17,680 -                                    
8 MWp DC at Bijapur (Karnataka)                              4,95,48,092                        5,01,18,103 
5 MWp DC at Sewagram (Gujarat)                              3,07,44,842                        3,22,78,931 
12.5 MWp DC at Rawan (Chhattisgarh)                              4,67,27,606                        5,03,85,387 
6.25 MWp DC at Hirmi (Chhattisgarh)                              2,23,95,580                        2,38,31,960 
17.5 MWp DC at Rajshree (Karnataka)                              7,22,92,199                        3,58,50,412 
11.05 MWp DC at Baikunth (Chattisgarh)                              1,30,51,663 -                                    

Other operating income
Sale of VCS credits                                   5,17,070                             3,38,821 
Power generation loss                                             -                             20,00,000 
Scrap sale                                             -                                  52,400 
Total                            30,96,55,220                      24,15,66,583 

(in Rs)

Contract balances  As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

Contract assets -                                          -                                    
Contract liabilities -                                          -                                    
Receivables

Trade receivables (note 28) 1,98,24,765                       35,51,050                   
Unbilled revenue (note 28) 3,03,29,832                       2,27,05,365                

Total                              5,01,54,597                        2,62,56,415 

Transaction Price - Remaining Performance Obligation

23 Other income (in Rs)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020 

Interest income                                 66,63,306                           60,50,426 

Exchange difference (net)                                 17,37,832                                       -   

Total                                 84,01,138                           60,50,426 

24 Employee benefit expenses (in Rs)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020 
Salaries, wages and bonus                                 62,84,268 -                                    
Contribution to provident and other funds                                   3,65,656 -                                    
Staff welfare expenses                                      52,626 -                                    
Total                                 67,02,550 -                                    

25 Finance costs (in Rs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020 

Interest cost on borrowings                            13,74,39,989                      11,15,19,416 

Bank charges                                   5,09,948                             1,38,064 
Total                            13,79,49,937                      11,16,57,480 

26 Other expenses (in Rs)

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020 
Insurance expenses                                 40,13,095                           16,66,554 

Exchange differences (net) -                                                                    62,62,809 

Deputation charges                                   4,24,935                             2,13,867 

Legal and professional fees                                 37,13,472                             9,59,529 

Payment to auditors (refer details below)                                 18,15,135                           22,73,084 
Repairs and maintenance                                 32,34,958                           18,91,727 
Stamp duty on shares -                                                                    22,16,223 
Managerial remuneration 2                                             2                                       
Business development expenses                                           485                             4,47,428 
Rates and taxes                                 13,38,221                           10,24,625 
Office rent                                 36,53,840 -                                    
Director sitting fees                                   7,08,000                             7,90,600 
Miscellaneous expenses                                 23,19,913                             1,53,938 
Total                              2,12,22,056                        1,79,00,386 

(in Rs)

Payment to auditors
 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020 

As auditor
Audit fees                                 17,19,909                           20,14,909 
Tax audit fees                                      95,226                             1,54,226 
Reimbursement of expenses -                                                                      1,03,949 
Total 18,15,135                                22,73,084                         

Performance obligation is satisfied on the supply of power and payment due is as per the terms of the PPAs.

The Company has one principal customer i.e., UltraTech Cement Limited for all its solar power projects. The Company has entered into Power Purchase
Agreements (PPAs) with the customer for supply of solar power.

The Company operates only in one reportable segment i.e. 'generation and distribution of solar power energy'. The entire revenue from operations
pertains to solar power generation.  Hence the Company has not further disaggregated operating revenues.

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the
reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given
in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as the revenue recognized
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date.
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27  Earning per share (EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

For the year ended 
31 March 2020

                              9,48,42,622                          (3,24,83,517)
                              6,26,10,240                            5,25,74,355 

1.51                                         (0.62)                                      

28  Related party transactions

Name of related parties and description of relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the year ended 31 March 2021

(A) Holding Company

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited (74%)

(B) Ultimate Holding Company

Grasim Industries Limited (through its 100% holding in Aditya Birla Renewables Limited)

(C) Associate Company

UltraTech Cement Limited (26%)

(D) Fellow subsidiaries of Holding / Ultimate Holding Company

Aditya Birla Renewables Utkal Limited

Aditya Birla Solar Limited

(F) Key Managerial personnel

Ravinder Khanna, Managing Director (cessation w.e.f. 14 March 2021)

Pinky Atul Mehta, Director

Bhupendranath Bhargava, Independent Director (w.e.f. 08 April 2019)

Venkatadri Chandrasekaran, Independent Director (w.e.f. 08 April 2019) 

Pawan Kumar Jain, Director and Chief Financial Officer

 (in Rs) 

 31 March 2021  31 March 2020 

1 Allotment of equity shares including securities premium
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited -                                                                    16,37,04,908 
UltraTech Cement Limited -                                                                      5,75,17,940 

-                                                                    22,12,22,848 
2 Revenue from operations- solar power generation

UltraTech Cement Limited                             30,91,38,150                          23,91,75,362 

3 Project management fees capitalised under property, plant and equipment
Grasim Industries Limited                               2,82,54,332                            2,67,03,623 

4 Supervision and monitoring of operation and maintenance services charged to statement of profit 
and loss
Grasim Industries Limited                                  11,25,005                                 7,32,725 

5 Inter corporate loan taken 
Grasim Industries Limited -                                                                      6,25,00,000 

6 Inter corporate loan repaid
Grasim Industries Limited
 - Principal -                                                                      6,25,00,000 
 - Interest paid on inter corporate loan capitalised -                                                                           7,29,675 

-                                           6,32,29,675                          
7 Inter corporate loan given 

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited                               2,00,00,000                            7,50,00,000 

8 Repayment against inter corporate loan given 
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited
 - Principal                               2,00,00,000                            7,50,00,000 
 - Interest income booked to statement of profit and loss                                    1,02,466                                 6,89,383 

2,01,02,466                              7,56,89,383                          
9 Managerial remuneration

Ravinder Khanna 1                                               1                                            
Pawan Kumar Jain 1                                               1                                            

10 Deputation charges 
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited                                    4,24,935                                 2,13,867 

11 Payment of statutory dues
Aditya Birla Renewables Utkal Limited                                       57,290 -                                         

12 Reimbursement for plant commissioning approvals (receivable)
UltraTech Cement Limited                                  25,41,146 -                                         

13 Transfer of employee related liabilities 
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited                                  10,10,537 -                                         

14 Reimbursement of expenses (payable)
UltraTech Cement Limited                                    2,36,000 -                                         
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited                                       80,555 

15 Reimbursement of insurance charges
Grasim Industries Limited                                       66,944 -                                         

16 Director sitting fees
Venkatadri Chandrasekaran                                    3,00,000                                 3,70,000 
Bhupendranath Bhargava                                    3,00,000                                 3,00,000 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs) 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the period attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit /loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus 
the weighted average number of Equity Shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders (in Rs)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS

Particulars

Details of transactions with related parties:

Sr. No. Particulars
For the year ended
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Details of closing balances :  (in Rs) 

Sr. No. Particulars

1 Share capital including securities premium
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited 47,25,82,086 47,25,82,086
UltraTech Cement Limited 16,60,42,362 16,60,42,362

63,86,24,448 63,86,24,448
2A Trade receivables

UltraTech Cement Limited 1,98,24,765 35,51,050

2B Unbilled revenue
UltraTech Cement Limited 3,03,29,832 2,27,05,365

3 Project management fees payable
Grasim Industries Limited 1,35,39,637 2,44,40,604

4 Supervision and monitoring of operation and maintenance services payable
Grasim Industries Limited (net of TDS) 3,50,060 2,69,477

5 Deputation charges payable
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited -                                           2,13,867

6 Payable towards reimbursement of expenses
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited                                    1,04,854 -                                         

7 Purchase of material
Aditya Birla Solar Limited -                                           1,67,560

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions with related parties are in the ordinary course of business and are on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at
the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash for the year ended 31 March 2021. The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts
owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related parties and the market in which the related
parties operate.

 As at 
31 March 2020 

 As at 
31 March 2021 

Related party relationships as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 24) have been identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors. All the transactions are
carried out at arms length price.
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29  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
    - Financial instruments management and policies (note 34)
    - Capital management (note 34)

Judgements

i) Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contract with customers

ii) Ind AS 116 - Leases

Estimates and assumptions

Taxes

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies
Key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Change in method of amortisation of loan transaction expenses

The Company has changed the method of calculation of amortisation of loan transaction expenses from cash flow basis to straight-line amortisation over the tenure of the loan. If the
Company had not changed the method of calculation for amortisation of loan transaction expenses, the finance cost would have been higher by Rs. 1,67,28,203 and consequently, profit
before tax would have been lower by the same amount. There will be no future impact due to change in method as the loan transaction expenses will be amortised over the remaining tenure
of the loan.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by management estimate, depreciates plant and machinery and building over estimated useful lives, which are different from the useful
life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, if any, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extend that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements:

The management has considered all the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with the customer in accordance with Ind AS 115, which may
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The Company recognises revenue for the amount it has the right to invoice (i.e., on an as-invoiced
basis) as the amount corresponds to the value it transfers to the customer.

Effective 01 April 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116, 'Leases'. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise Right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of a low value.A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an specified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company's property, plant and equipment is the specified asset for the evaluation of this
standard.

The Company has evaluated the Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) entered into with its customer, UltraTech Cement Limited for lease arrangements under Ind AS 116 'Leases'. The
Company has concluded that the arrangement is not in the nature of lease as the customer does not have the right to direct the use of the specified asset and entire control of the asset is
with the Company.
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30.1 Defined Contribution Plan:

30.2 Employee benefits- Defined benefits plans as per Actuarial Valuation:
Gratuity:

Inherent Risk:

Statement of profit and loss (in Rs.)

Current service cost                                             76,309 
Interest cost on benefit obligation                                             11,095 
Past service cost -                                                 
Expected return on plan assets -                                                 
Net actuarial(gain)/loss recognized in the year -                                                 
Net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss                                             87,404 

Balance sheet (in Rs.)

Opening net defined benefit liability/(asset) -                                                 
Expense charged to profit and loss account                                             87,404 
Amount recognized outside profit & loss account                                             47,424 
Employer contribution -                                                 
Impact of liability assumed or (settled)                                          3,64,709 
Closing net defined benefit liability/(asset)                                          4,99,537 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: (in Rs.)

Opening defined benefit obligation -                                                 
Current service cost                                             76,309 
Benefits directly paid by the Company -                                                 
Interest on defined benefit obligation                                             11,095 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation                                             47,424 
Liabilities assumed/(settled)                                          3,64,709 
Closing defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year                                          4,99,537 

The principal assumptions used in determining benefit obligations are shown below:

Discount rate (per annum) 6.10%
Age of retirement  60 years 
Annual increase in salary cost 6%
Attrition/withdrawal rate (per annum)
Age (in years)  Rate (p.a.) 

21-30 13%
31-40 0%
41-50 13%
51-59 33%
Mortality (table)  IALM (2012-14) Ult  

30.3 The sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Discount rate Salary escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation on increase in 50 bps 4,76,586 5,24,235
Impact of increase in 50 bps on defined benefit obligation -4.59% 4.94%
Defined benefit obligation on decrease in 50 bps 5,24,332 4,76,461
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on defined benefit obligation 4.96% -4.62%

Particulars
As at

 31 March 2021

30. Retirement benefits

Amount of Rs. 3,65,224 (31  March 2020 : Rs. Nil) is recognised as an expense and included in note 24 - 'employee benefit expenses' in the statement of profit and loss.

The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of service, whichever is earlier, of an amount
equivalent to 15 to 30 days’ salary for each completed year of service, as per rules framed in this regard. Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service
in accordance with Indian law. In case of majority of employees, the Company’s scheme is more favourable as compared to the obligation under payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as prescribed by the Ind AS-19 - ‘Employee
Benefits’, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up final
obligation.

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, this exposes the Company
to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, changes in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan assets. This may result in an increase in cost of
providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not subject to any longevity risk.

Since the payroll was transferred from Aditya Birla Renewables Limited with effect from 01 September 2020, no comparative figures have been provided for the year ended
31 March 2020.

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

Particulars
As at

 31 March 2021

30.4 The obligation for compensated absences is recognised in the same manner as gratuity, amounting to charge of Rs.1,35,396  (31 March 2020 - Rs. Nil)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2021

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in the employment market.

 Particulars
For the year ended 31 March 2021
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(in Rs.)

Gratuity                                                  2,299                              93,710                          1,59,423                                    7,53,219                                  10,08,651 

(in Rs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

                                 12,77,073                               1,89,73,711 

-                                            -                                            

-                                            -                                            

-                                            -                                            

-                                            -                                            

32 Segment reporting

33 Categories of financial instruments (in Rs)

As at
 31 March 2021

As at
 31 March 2020

As at
 31 March 2021

As at
 31 March 2020

Financial assets

Trade receivables (note 7)                      2,04,03,885                        40,58,902                               2,04,03,885                                  40,58,902 
Cash and cash equivalents (note 8)                      7,13,82,268                   20,51,19,013                               7,13,82,268                              20,51,19,013 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (note 9)                      4,85,00,000                     1,21,18,771                               4,85,00,000                               1,21,18,771 
Other financial assets (note 4 and 10)                      5,85,63,163                     2,94,19,558                               5,85,63,163                               2,94,19,558 

Total 19,88,49,316                   25,07,16,244                  19,88,49,316                            25,07,16,244                            
Financial liabilities

Borrowings (note 14)                 2,05,32,57,347                1,88,91,53,022                           2,05,32,57,347                           1,88,91,53,022 
Trade payables (note 18)                         43,67,073                        37,30,791                                  43,67,073                                  37,30,791 
Other financial liabilities (note 15 and 19)                    13,71,70,748                   11,44,70,047                              13,71,70,748                              11,44,70,047 

Total 2,19,47,95,168                2,00,73,53,860               2,19,47,95,168                         2,00,73,53,860                         

34 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

(A) Market Risk

Risk Management

Market Risk
a) Foreign exchange risk Forward foreign exchange

contracts

b) Interest rate risk Interest rate swaps and loan 
takeover for long term 
borrowings diversification

Credit risk Credit monitoring, credit limit
and credit worthiness
monitoring of the counter
parties

Liquidity risk Borrowing facilities 
diversification

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

USD Rs USD Rs
Buyer's credit                         38,13,129                   28,02,82,882                                  38,13,129                              28,74,56,140 
Interest on buyer's credit                                2,477                          1,82,043                                         4,816                                    3,63,077 
Interest on supplier's credit                              12,391                          9,10,800                                       25,882                                  19,51,112 
Supplier's credit                         58,56,815                   43,05,03,457                                  39,04,195                              29,43,21,254 

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting period

Particulars

Principal amount due to micro enterprises and small enterprises

Interest due on above
Amount of interest paid during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

31 Details of micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 -                                            

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise of borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s
principal financial assets, other than derivatives, include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that arise directly from its operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

-                                            

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they would be identified as "Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises" on the basis of information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors.

For management purpose, the Company is engaged into one reportable business segment i.e. "generation and distribution of solar power energy". No other operating segment has been aggregated to form the above reportable
operating segment. The Company’s revenue, result, assets and liabilities are reported to the management for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Particulars

Fair valueCarrying value

Measured at amortized cost (carrying values approximates the amortized cost):

Measured at amortized cost (carrying values approximates the amortized cost):

The Company has assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balance, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term nature 
of the instruments. Long term borrowings are evaluated based on parameters such as interest rate and risk characteristic of financial project. Based on the evaluation, no impact has been identified.

Details relating to the risks are provided here below:

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in foreign exchange rates relates to import of modules, wherever required.

The Company regularly evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions. The Company follows the established risk management policies. It uses derivative instruments like forward covers/swap to
hedge exposure to foreign currency risk.

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the foreign currency exposure. The details of the foreign currency exposure and its
carrying value are as follows:

Outstanding foreign currency exposure
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

5% increase in foreign exchange rates will decrease profit before tax and decrease pre tax equity by Rs 3,55,93,959  (PY Rs 2,92,04,579). If the rate is decreased by 5%, the profit before tax and pre tax equity will increase by an 
equal amount.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cashflow forecasts

Exposure arising from Measurement

Long term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis, interest rate movements

Trade receivables, derivative financial instruments Ageing analysis, credit rating

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the
interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments, including investments and
deposits, payables and borrowings.

The Company’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. The Company uses derivative
financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge foreign currency risk exposure.

The sources of risks which the Company is exposed to and their management is given below:

Committed commercial transactions, financial assets and
liabilities not denominated in Rs

Cashflow forecasting, sensitivity analysis

Above 5 years Total

30.5 The expected maturity analysis of gratuity are as follows:

As at
 31 March 2021

Upto 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years
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(B) Interest Rate risk

(C) Credit Risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.

a. Trade receivables

(D) Liquidity risk

(in Rs)

                       6,98,27,057             31,01,63,260     22,10,88,040           1,50,62,80,292                        2,10,73,58,649 
                          43,67,073 -                            -                   -                                                           43,67,073 

                     12,35,27,617 -                            -                   -                                                      12,35,27,617 
                     19,77,21,747             31,01,63,260     22,10,88,040           1,50,62,80,292                        2,23,52,53,339 

(in Rs)

Borrowings                        3,03,04,336             19,38,91,942     16,64,53,161           1,49,43,59,189                        1,88,50,08,628 

                          37,30,791 -                            -                   -                                                           37,30,791 

                     11,44,70,047 -                            -                   -                                                      11,44,70,047 
Total                      14,85,05,174             19,38,91,942     16,64,53,161           1,49,43,59,189                        2,00,32,09,466 

(E) Capital management

(in Rs)

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Borrowings (note 14)                          2,12,30,84,404                      1,91,94,57,358 
Less- Cash and cash equivalents (note 8)                               7,13,82,268                         20,51,19,013 
Net debt                          2,05,17,02,136                      1,71,43,38,345 

Equity (note 12 & 13)                             69,69,29,946                         60,87,95,328 
Equity                             69,69,29,946                         60,87,95,328 

Gearing Ratio 2.94 2.82

35 Financial instruments - fair value measurements

Fair value hierarchy

(in Rs)

Particulars Level
As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Derivative asset at fair value through OCI Level 2                                           -                          1,49,62,544 
Derivative liability at fair value through OCI Level 2                           1,36,43,132                                         -   
Key inputs for Level 2 fair valuation technique

Significant unobservable input Not Applicable
Relationship of unobservable input to fair Not Applicable

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Total trade receivables as on 31 March 2021 is Rs 2,04,03,885 (PY Rs 40,58,902).

b. Cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and derivative instruments

Total

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in prevailing market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk due to changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s borrowings with floating interest rates. For foreign borrowings, the Company designates interest rate and cross currency swaps and has a hedge ratio of 1:1. Interest rate sensitivity has been calculated
assuming the borrowings outstanding at the reporting date have been outstanding for the entire reporting period. The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and revisits its financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity
profile and financing cost.

1% increase in interest rates will decrease profit before tax and decrease pre tax equity by Rs 2,10,73,587 (PY Rs 1,88,50,086). If the rate is decreased by 1%, the profit before tax will increase and pretax equity will increase by an 
equal amount.

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily
trade receivables and from its financing/ investing activities, including deposits with banks and foreign exchange transactions. 

Trade receivables consist of principally one customer UltraTech cement Limited. The Company has already evaluated the credit worthiness of the party and did not find any credit risk related to trade receivables. As per simplified
approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default in payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is
for longer period and involves higher risk. 

upto 12 months

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The management is responsible for managing liquidity, funding as well as settlement. Further management monitors the
Company’s liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

As at 31 March 2021

Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities 
Total

The table below provides details of financial liabilities further based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits, derivative instruments is generally low as the Company has transacted with reputed banks.

Above 5 years

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, share premium, and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.

As at 31 March 2020

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide maximum returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an 
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Total

1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Above 5 years

Trade payables
Other financial liabilities 

upto 12 months 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based on forward exchange 
rates(from observable forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period) and 
contract forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various 
counterparties.

The Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt less cash and cash equivalent divided by total equity.

Some of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial 
liabilities are determined (in particular the valuation techniques and inputs used).

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

In addition, the Company has financial covenants relating to the borrowing facilities that it has taken from the lenders like debt-equity ratio, debt service coverage ratio, total outstanding liability to networth ratio and fixed assets 
coverage ratio which are maintained by the Company.
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36. Cash flow hedge

USD Rs Asset Liability
Cashflow hedges

Cross currency swaps Buyers credit and interest
Exchange rate movement risk 
and interest rate risk

                                  38,13,129              27,74,68,703 -                             18,55,159  November 2021 

Currency Swap Suppliers credit Exchange rate movement risk                                   58,56,815              42,71,38,738 26,16,370 82,93,672  July 2022 - June 2023 

Interest rate swap Interest on suppliers credit Interest rate risk                                         12,391                     9,67,010 -                                                61,10,670  July 2022- June 2023 

USD Rs Asset Liability
Cashflow hedges

Cross currency swaps Buyers credit and interest
Exchange rate movement risk 
and interest rate risk

                                  38,13,129              27,74,68,703 1,09,83,982                                 -    November 2021 

Currency Swap Suppliers credit Exchange rate movement risk                                   39,04,195              28,02,82,159 1,15,21,012                                 -    July 2022 

Interest rate swap Interest on suppliers credit Interest rate risk                                         12,251                     9,56,555                                -                      75,42,451  July 2022 

Movement in hedge reserve account

(in Rs)

Realised Unrealised Total
Balance at the beginning of the year -                                                                                  (1,49,62,544)                               (1,49,62,544)

Add: Changes in fair value during the year * -                                                                                    2,86,05,676                                2,86,05,676 

Less: Amount reclassified to statement of profit or loss -                                                        -                                                                                          -   

Closing balance -                                                                                    1,36,43,132                                1,36,43,132 

(in Rs)

Realised Unrealised Total

Balance at the beginning of the year -                                                                                      (13,90,289)                                  (13,90,289)

Add: Changes in fair value during the year * -                                                                                  (1,49,62,544)                               (1,49,62,544)

Less: Amount reclassified to statement of profit or loss                                               13,90,289 -                                                                            13,90,289 

Closing balance                                               13,90,289                           (1,63,52,833)                               (1,49,62,544)

* This represents movement in derivative liability

Non current

The details of derivative contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2021 is as follows:

Hedged item Expected maturity

Expected maturityRisk hedgedHedged item

Carrying value of hedging instrument

Details of derivative contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2020

Risk hedged

Non current
Carrying value of hedging instrumentNominal value 

Nominal value 

The Company’s business objective includes safe-guarding its foreign exchange borrowings against adverse foreign exchange movements. The Company has adopted a structured risk management policy to hedge all these risks within an acceptable risk limit and an
approved hedge accounting framework which allows for Fair Value and Cash Flow hedges. Hedging instruments include forward contracts, swaps and other instruments to achieve this objective. The Company has taken derivative instruments (currency swaps and
interest rate swaps) to hedge its foreign currency exposure. 

Cashflow hedge reserve account

Cashflow hedge reserve account
As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2021

The line item in the Balance Sheet that includes the above hedging instruments is 'Other Non Current Assets'/'Other Financial Liabilities'
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37 Capital commitments

(in Rs)

Particulars  As at 31 March 2021  As at 31 March 2020

Estimated amount to be paid for contracts executed on capital account 
and not provided for (net of advances)

-                                                      15,80,32,605                           

Total -                                                      15,80,32,605                           

38 There are no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020 : Rs. Nil).

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar Amitabh Verma Pawan Kumar Jain   

Partner Director                        Director and CFO

Membership No.: 36738 DIN: 08990619 DIN: 07833315

Place: Mumbai

Date:  22 April 2021 Swati Patil

Company Secretary

Membership No. : ACS 61279

Place: Mumbai

Date:  22 April 2021

40  Previous periods' figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to current period's classification.

39 Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the Company has made an assessment of the likely adverse impact on economic environment in general and financial
risks on account of COVID-19. The Company continues to assess the recoverability of the carrying amount of its assets through consideration of various internal and external
information and has concluded that these carrying amounts are recoverable as on March 31, 2021. The Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact
of known events arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the financial statements. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given
the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Pawan 
Kumar Jain

Digitally signed by 
Pawan Kumar Jain 
Date: 2021.04.22 
22:16:54 +05'30'

Swati 
Prafullakumar Patil

Digitally signed by Swati 
Prafullakumar Patil 
Date: 2021.04.22 
22:17:32 +05'30'

AMITAB
H VERMA

Digitally signed by 
AMITABH VERMA 
Date: 2021.04.22 
22:25:57 +05'30'

VIJAY 
MANIAR

Digitally signed 
by VIJAY MANIAR 
Date: 2021.04.22 
23:17:33 +05'30'
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Grasim Industries Limited 

Registered Office:
Birlagram, Nagda - 456 331, 
Madhya Pradesh

Corporate Office:
Aditya Birla Centre,  
‘A’ Wing, 2nd Floor, 
S. K. Ahire Marg, Worli,  
Mumbai - 400 030, Maharashtra

grasim.secretarial@adityabirla.com | www.grasim.com 
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